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WHO WE ARE

PG Barry Corporation is one of

the worlds leading developers and

marketers of accessory footwear

retail category led by slippers

but also encompassing sandals and

flip-flops hybrid and active fashion

footwear slipper socks and hosiery

We develop and source more than

25 million pairs of accessory

footwear annually

Our products can be found in wide range

of North American retailers under growing

family of proprietary and licensed brands

including Dearfoams the worlds best

known slipper brand DF by Dearfoams

and DF Sport Terrasoles casual footwear

utopia by Dearfoams and the worlds first

foam-soled soft washable slipper Angel

Treads We also market under license

Levis brand slippers and sandals and

Superga canvas sneakers

Our category leadership is the result of

excellence in design and development

sourcing quality and value consumer brand

marketing category management supply

chain and logistics and relationship building

For retailers these strengths mean proven

quality products and brands that achieve

sales and profit targets For consumers they

mean stylish quality products at great price

Fiscal 2010 marked the companys fifth

consecutive year of healthy revenue growth

and solid profitability Our growth is based

on strategy that addresses investment in

and nurturing of our own brands diversification

through category appropriate acquisitions

international expansion with key retailing

partners entering new meaningful branding

and licensing opportunities targeting new or

underserved retailers and introducing innovative

new proprietary products and brands

R.G Barry corporation was founded in columbus

Ohio in 1947 and has been publicly traded since

1961 Our common shares principally trade on The

NASDAQ Global Market under the symbol DFZ
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FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS
in thousands except per common share data

53 weeks ended 52 weeks ended 52 weeks ended

July 2070 June 27 2009 June 28 2008

NET SALES $123787 $113817 $109499

SELLNG GENERAL
ADMINPSTRA11VE

EXPENSES $36623 $32971 $32126

NET EARNINGS $9400 $6992 $9785

NET EARNINGS PER

DILUTED COMMON SHARE $0.85 $0.65 $0.92

BOOK VALUE

PER COMMON SHARE $4.95 $4.28 $4.31

CASH CASH EQUIVALENTS

SHORT-TERM INVESTMENTS $44942 $39236 $26080

INVENTORY $13486 $8499 $10842

TOTAL SHAREHOLDERS
EQUITY $54596 $45908 $46029
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WE INCREASED ANNUAL NET SALES BY8%
AND OUR DILUTED EARNINGS PER SHARE ROSE
APPROXIMATELY 31% TO $O85 PER SHARE
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Dear Fellow Shareholder

Fsca 2010 was great year for our Company

Our family of proprietary licensed and private

label brands performed well across the many

retail channels we serve We continued five-year

pattern of consistent revenue growth and strong

earnings performance far exceeding both our

annual operating plan and our prior year results

2010 Fnanca Recap

In FY 2010 the first year of our Team RGB

Play to Win three-year strategic plan we

increased net sales by 8.1% and our diluted

earnings per common share rose approximately

31% to $0.85 per common share We outpaced

the annual goals set for new business initiative

growth gross profit operating profit inventory

productivity return on invested capital and return

on shareholders equity In line with the dividend

policy adopted last year the Board of Directors

declared quarterly dividends that equaled an

annualized per common share return on free

cash flow of approximately 29% for FY 2010

Our strong performance did not go unnoticed

among investors Our average common share

price increased by about 90% June-over-June

and our average weekly trading volume rose

about seven-fold during the same period Our

increased market capitalization led to DFZs

inclusion in the Russell 2000 and 3000 family

of indices in late June 2010 We also garnered

coverage in some well-read investment

publications during the year including

TheStreet.Com and Value Investor Insight

At 4.6 times EBITDA our enterprise value at

year-end was significantly below our industry

peers We expect this market-driven imbalance

to equalize as we continue to deliver top-

quartile performance by successfully executing

our strategies for growth and profitability in

FY 2011 and beyond

Addtiona 2010 HighHghts

In addition to our very strong financial

performance we achieved number of key

objectives during fiscal 2010 fevv of our

more significant accomplishments included

the debut of our Dearfoams multi-year

multi-million dollar advertising and marketing

program highlighted by an accessory market

week launch party featuring fashion guru

Tim Gunn

the shift of our China operations from Hong

Kong to Guangdong Province and the successful

evolution of our China presence from buying

office to full-service product development

function

led by Terrasoles our new business initiatives

collectively reached the milestone of contribut

ing about 10% of our total annual revenue and

we continued investing in our people and

corporate culture with the implementation

of The Four Disciplines of Execution program

throughout our organization

LETTER FROM
THE CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER
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The Future

Our future is bright We have the strategies

to sustain profitable growth We have the

resources to support our continuing evolution

into leading consumer-centric brand manage

ment company On all critical performance

metrics we plan to continue striving for top

quartile annual results when compared against

our industry contemporaries In the coming year

we expect to grow in both our existing and new

businesses expand internationally in conjunc

tion with key retailing partners and continue to

actively seek category appropriate opportunities

that will further diversify our business portfolio

For example we announced in late July that we

had exclusively licensed our Dearfoams name

to Olivet International Inc one of the worlds

leading accessory apparel resources to develop

and market variety of Dearfoams branded

sleepwear active wear and accessory products in

the North and South American markets

We have previously shared with you the strategy

for leveraging our core competencies in the

accessory footwear business to fuel growth

We plan to continue this effort in FY 2011 by

taking full advantage of our strength in design

and product development the sourcing of quality

and value products consumer brand marketing

retail category management supply chain and

logistics and customer relationship building

Our core competencies are critically important

in FY 2011 as we focus on further enhancing

Dearfoams position with customers and

consumers on driving complementary growth

in our private label business on diversifying our

brand portfolio with Terrasoles and licensed

brands such as Levis and Superga and

on future strategic acquisitions or licensing

arrangements And while our business is already

efficiently run we will continue our relentless

pursuit of opportunities to reduce costs

enhance effectiveness and increase profitability

60 Years of Service

Director Edward Stan will not seek re-election

to the Board at this years Annual Meeting of

Shareholders bringing to close an amazing 60

years of continuous service to our Company first

as senior executive and as director since 1971

While it may be difficult for many of us to

imagine an R.G Barry without Eds vision

wisdom unwavering passion and sincere

commitment his imprint is indelible His legacy

is secure On behalf of the past current and

future members of the R.G Barry team thank

you Ed for all you have done You truly are one

of the giants upon whose shoulders we stand

as we build the R.G Barry of tomorrow

Support Appreciated

In closing want to take this opportunity

to personally thank the R.G Barry team our

Directors Shareholders Customers Consumers

and Vendors for the important role each has

played in our outstanding FY 2010 success

It was an incredible year that resulted from

total team effort

Looking ahead we appreciate your continuing

interest and support and we hope that you will

choose to share with us the exciting tomorrow

that we envision for R.G Barry Corporation

Sincerely

Greg Tunney

President

Chief Executive Officer



v_ LC

DFSIGNED TO INCREASF BRAND

AWARENESS ANt DRIVE SALES
rHE VISUA/ LY ARRESTING

IMAGES SHOVFi COIVSL/IIERS

IN UNEXPECIFD MOMENTS

or COMFORL 77-IF CAMPAIGN

ALSO LED TO JHC rIRST-E/ER

LICE/VS/NO OF Hi DEARFOA1S

NAME FOR SLCEPWEAR ACTIVE

VVFiR AND ACCESSORY

PRODUCTS



ROBARRY CORPORATION

The Dearfoams
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its about comfort that fits
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oams
make yourself comfortable

Dearfoams is

surrounding

consumers with our

new look We reached

millions last Fall through

nationwide out-of-home

campaign generated 25M

impressions advertising online

and grew our social media

community by 1000%
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DIRECTORS OFFICERS

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

Nichoas DiPaoo

Chair Audit Committee member Compensation
and Nominating Governance Committees

Former Vice Chairman Chief Operating Off cer

Bernard Chaus Inc womens appare
Director Footlocker Inc footwear retaler

and JPS Industries Inc soecalty industrial products

Davd Lauer

Member Audit Compensation and

Nominating Governance Committees

Former Acting Ch ef Financ Officer

of The Oh State Univers ty Medical Center

Former President Ch ef Operating Officer

Bank One Columbus NA
Former Managing Partner Co umbus off ce

Deloitte Touche LLP auditors consultants

Director Huntington Bancshares Inc

bank ho ding company and Diamond Hi

Investment Group Inc investment advisors

David Nchos
Member Audit Compensation and

Nominating Governance Committees

Former President Ch ef Operat ng Officer

Macys South Dvis on Federated Department Stores

now Macys Inc

Former Chairman Chief Executive

Cfficer Mercant le Stores nc retailer

Former Director The Federal Reserve Bank eve and

Director The Andersons Inc versified company

Janke Page
Chair Compensation Committee Member Audit

and Nominating Governance Committees

ndependent rate merchandis ng buyng marketing

sfore operations and management consultant

Former Senior Gmup Vice President

Sears Roebuck and Co
rector Amer can Eagie Outf tters nc clothing retailer

and Hampsh re Group Limited provider of sweaters

wovens kn ts and branded apparel

Edward Stan

Chair Nominating Governance Committee

Member Audit and Compensation Committees

President Eowerd Stan ard Assoc ates importers

Greg Tunney
President Chief Executive Officer

PG Barry Corporation

Former President Ch ef Operating Off car

Phoer Footwear Group Inc footwear ard

apparel supp ier

Director end Treasurer Footwear str butors

and Retai ers of America trade orgar zat on

and rector Two Ten Footwear Foundation

philanthropic trade organ zation

Thomas Von Lehman

Member Audit Compensation and

Nominating Governance Committees

Managing Director The Mend an Grouo

business consultants

Former Pres dent Chief Executive Offcer

PG Barry Corporation

Harvey Weinberg
Member Audit Compensation and

Nominating Governance Committees

Chairman of the Board Optirrer Brards text tecfro ogy
Former Chairman of the Board Ch ef ExecutIve Off car

Hartmarx Corporation cloth ers

Gordon Zacks

Chairman of the Board Member Nominating

Governance Committee

Former President Ch ef Execut ye Off cer

PG Barry Corporation
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SENIOR MANAGEMENT TEAM ADMNSTRATWE SALES OFFCES

PG Barry Brands Sales

Greg Ackard

Senior Vice President Sales
Office Showrooms

37th Street 11th Floor

Genn Evans
New York NY 10016

Te ephone 212 244.3145

Senior Vice President Global Operations

JosØ barra
PG Barry Brands Sales Office

Senior Vice President Finance 903 S.F 28th Street Suite

Chief Financial Officer Bentonv lIe AR 72712

Telephone 479.464.4363

Yvonne Kaucis

Senior Vice President Human Resources
PG Barry Brands Sourcing Office

Brain BOld ng 1st Floor

Lee Smith Nanwu Chisheng Industry Zone

Senior Vice President Creative Services
Houj Town Dongguan City

Guangdong Prov nce PRO 523945

Telephone 86.769.309.1666

Greg Tunney
President Chief Executive Officer DISTRIBU11ON CENTER

Barry of San Angelo

GENERAL COUNSEL 3301 Barry Avenue

Vorys Sater Seymour and Pease LLP
San Angelo TX 76901

Telephone 325.942.7664

Columbus Ohio

INTERNET ADDRESSES
INDEPENDENT REGISTERED

PUBLIC ACCOUNTING FIRM www.rgbarry.com

www dearfoams com
KPMG LLP Columbus Ohio

www.superga-usa.com

www.terraso es.com

LOCATIONS

EXECUTWE OFFCES

PG Barry Corporation _______________

13405 Yarmouth Road N.W

Pickerington OH 43147 R.G Barry Senior Management Team

Telephone 614.864.6400
left to right Lee Smith Yvonne Kalucis

JosØ Ibarra Glenn Evans Greg Ackard
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CORPORATE INFORMATION

TRADEMARKS

The following are the principal

trademarks of the Company

registered with or registration

applied for with the United States

Department of Commerce Patent

and Trademark Office or with the

appropriate foreign registration

authority Angel Treads

Dearfoams DF by Dearfoams

DF Sport Terrasoles and

Utopia by Dearfoams

R.G Barry Corporation also markets

Levis brand footwear under license

granted by Levi Strauss Co and

Superga canvas/active fashion

footwear under license granted

by Basic Properties America Inc

SUBSIDIARIES

The Dearfoams Company
R.G Barry International Inc

RGB Technology Inc formerly

Vesture Corporation

BUSINESS ETHICS

fundamental goal of Barry

Corporation is to incorporate our core

values of integrity quality innovation

leadership teamwork and community

into our business in manner that

leads to the long-term success of

the Company our shareholders and

employees We strive to achieve the

highest business and personal ethical

standards as well as compliance with

all applicable governmental laws rules

and regulations

EQUAL EMPLOYMENT
OPPORTUNITIES

We offer the opportunity of equal

employment to all individuals without

regard to disability race color

religion sex national origin or age

REPORTING ACCOUNTING
AND AUDITING CONCERNS
AND COMPLAINTS

The Audit Committee of our

Board of Directors has established

procedures for the handling of

concerns or complaints regarding

questionable accounting or auditing

matters and oversees the handling

of those complaints

Employees of the Company may

submit good faith concern or

complaint regarding accounting

matters without fear of dismissal

or retaliation of any kind full

description of the procedures

available to employees wishing

to report questionable accounting

or auditing matters is provided as

part of our hiring process These

procedures also are published

on our employee Intranet site

posted on News Centers at all

company locations and published

as part of all employee handbooks

and policy manuals

Non-employees can submit their

written concerns or complaints

regarding accounting matters in

sealed envelope to the Chair of the

Audit Committee c/o R.G Barry

Corporation 13405 Yarmouth Road

N.W Pickerington Ohio 43147

Any such envelopes received by

the Company will be forwarded

promptly to the Chair of the Audit

Committee Upon receipt of concern

or complaint the Chair of the Audit

Committee will determine whether

it actually pertains to accounting

matters If the Audit Committee

Chair feels it is related to accounting

matters the Audit Committee with

the assistance of such other persons

as the Audit Committee deems

appropriate will review the matter

Prompt and appropriate corrective

action will be taken as warranted

The Audit Committee maintains

log of all concerns and complaints

tracking their receipt investigation

and resolution Copies of concerns

and complaints and the log will be

maintained in accordance with the

Companys document retention policy

STOCK LISTING

R.G Barry Corporation has been

publicly-traded company since

1961 Our common shares have been

principally traded on The NASDAQ
Global Stock Market since March

10 2008 under the trading symbol

DFZ From December 2005 until

March 2008 our common shares

principally traded on the American

Stock Exchange under the trading

symbol DFZ

QUESTIONS ABOUT COMMON
SHARE HOLDINGS OR
CERTIFICATES NAME CHANGES
DIVIDEND DISTRIBUTION ETC

All questions regarding common share

holdings certificate replacements or

transfers address and name changes

and dividend distributions should be

directed to our registrar and transfer

agent at BNY Mellon Shareowner

Services Box 358015 Pittsburgh

PA 15252-8015 BNY Mellon Shareowner

Services can be contacted by tele

phone at 800.756.3353 by TDD for

hearing impaired at 800.231.5469 by

overseas shareowners at 201.680.6578

by TDD for overseas shareowners at

201.680.6610 or via the Internet at

www.bnymellon.com/shareowner/isd

FORM 10-K OTHER REPORTS

This publication includes the

Companys Annual Report on

Form 10-K for the fiscal year ended

July 2010 as filed with the Securities

and Exchange Commission All of the

Companys filings
with the Securities

and Exchange Commission can be

viewed on-line at our corporate

Website at www.rgbarry.com or by

directly visiting the Securities and

Exchange Commission

Website at www.sec.gov

Our Annual Report on Form 10-K for

the fiscal year ended July 2010 our

SEC filings as well as our news releases

are also available without charge by

writing to Roy Youst Director Investor

and Corporate Communications PG
Barry Corporation 13405 Yarmouth

Road NW Pickerington Ohio 43147

SHAREHOLDER SERVICES



UNITED STATES SECURITIES AND EXCHANGE COMMISSION
Washington D.C 20549

FORM 10-K %CMail

Mark One Sej0
ANNUAL REPORT PURSUANT TO SECTION 13 OR 15d OF THE
SECURITIES EXCHANGE ACT OF 1934 4OIQ

For the fiscal year ended July 2010

OR
Ifli

On

LI TRANSITION REPORT PURSUANT TO SECTION 13 OR 15d OF THE
SECURITIES EXCHANGE ACT OF 1934

For the transition period from ______________________ to ______________________

Commission File Number 001-08769

R.G BARRY CORPORATION
Exact name of Registrant as specfIed in its charter

Ohio 31-4362899

State or other jurisdiction of I.R.S Employer

incorporation or organization IdentfIcation No

13405 Yarmouth Road N.W
Pickerington Ohio 43147 614 864-6400

Address ofprincipal executive offices including zip code Registrants telephone number including area code

Securities registered pursuant to Section 12b of the Act

Title of Each Class Name of Each Exchange on Which Registered

Common Shares Par Value $1.00 per share The NASDAQ Stock Market

The NASDAQ Global Market

Series II Junior Participating Class The NASDAQ Stock Market

Preferred Share Purchase Rights

Securities registered pursuant to Section 12g of the Act None

Indicate by check mark if the Registrant is well-known seasoned issuer as defined in Rule 405 of the Securities Act Yes No

Indicate by check mark if the Registrant is not required to file reports pursuant to Section 13 or Section 15d of the Act Yes No

Indicate by check mark whether the Registrant has filed all reports required to be filed by Section 13 or 15d of the Securities

Exchange Act of 1934 during the preceding 12 months or for such shorter period that the Registrant was required to file such reports and

has been subject to such filing requirements for the past 90 days Yes E1 No

Indicate by check mark whether the registrant has submitted electronically and posted on its corporate Web site if any every
Interactive Data File required to be submitted and posted pursuant to Rule 405 of Regulation S-T 232.405 of this chapter during the

preceding 12 months or for such shorter period that the registrant was required to submit and post such files Yes No

Indicate by check mark if disclosure of delinquent filers pursuant to Item 405 of Regulation S-K 229.405 of this chapter is not

contained herein and will not be contained to the best of Registrants knowledge in definitive proxy or information statements incorporated

by reference in Part III of this Form 10-K or any amendment to this Form 10-K

Indicate by check mark whether the registrant is large accelerated filer an accelerated filer non-accelerated filer or smaller

reporting company See the definitions of large accelerated filer accelerated filer and smaller reporting company in Rule 2b-2 of the

Exchange Act

Large accelerated filer Accelerated filer Non-accelerated filer Smaller reporting company

Do not check if smaller reporting company

Indicate by check mark whether the Registrant is shell company as defined in Rule 12b-2 of the Act Yes No

The aggregate market value of the common shares the only common equity of the Registrant held by non-affiliates of the Registrant

was $84883187 based on the December 31 2009 closing price per common share of $8.60 on The NASDAQ Global Market

Indicate the number of shares outstanding of each of the Registrants classes of common stock as of the latest practicable date

10984180 common shares $1.00 par value as of September 22010

DOCUMENTS INCORPORATED BY REFERENCE



Portions of the Registrants definitive Proxy Statement to be furnished to shareholders of the Registrant in connection with the 2010

Annual Meeting of Shareholders which definitive Proxy Statement will be filed not later than 120 days after July 2010 are incorporated

by reference into Part III of this Annual Report on Form 10-K to the extent provided herein
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FORWARD-LOOKING STATEMENTS

Safe Harbor Statement under the Private Securities Litigation Reform Act of1995

Some of the disclosures in this Annual Report on Form 10-K for the fiscal year ended July

2010 the 2010 Form 10-K contain forward-looking statements that involve substantial risks and

uncertainties You can identiFy these statements by forward-looking words such as may expect
could should anticipate believe estimate or words with similar meanings Any statements

that refer to projections of our future performance anticipated trends in our business and other

characterizations of future events or circumstances are forward-looking statements These statements

which are forward-looking statements as that term is defined in the Private Securities Litigation Reform

Act of 1995 are based upon our current plans and strategies and reflect our current assessment of the

risks and uncertainties related to our business These risks include but are not limited to our continuing

ability to source products from third parties located outside North America competitive cost pressures

the loss of retailer customers to competitors consolidations bankruptcies or liquidations shifts in

consumer preferences the impact of global financial crisis and general economic conditions on consumer

spending the impact of the highly seasonal nature of our business upon our operations inaccurate

forecasting of consumer demand difficulties liquidating excess inventory disruption of our supply chain

or distribution networks and our investment of excess cash in certificates of deposit and other variable

rate demand note securities You should read this 2010 Form 10-K carefully because the forward-looking

statements contained in it discuss our future expectations contain projections of our future results

of operations or of our future financial condition or state other forward-looking information The

risk factors described in this 2010 Form 10-K and in our other filings with the Securities and Exchange

Commission the SEC in particular Item 1A Risk Factorsof Part of this 2010 Form 10-K give

examples of the types of uncertainties that may cause actual performance to differ materially from the

expectations we describe in our forward-looking statements If the events described in Item 1A Risk

Factors of Part of this 2010 Form 10-K occur they could have material adverse effect on our

business operating results and financial condition You should also know that it is impossible to predict

or identiFy all risks and uncertainties related to our business Consequently no one should consider any

such list to be complete set of all potential risks and uncertainties Forward-looking statements speak

only as of the date on which they are made and we undertake no obligation to update any forward-

looking statement to reflect circumstances or events that occur after the date on which the statement is

made to reflect unanticipated events Any further disclosures in our filings with the SEC should also be

considered

DEFINITIONS

All references in this 2010 Form 10-K to we us our and the Company refer to R.G

Barry Corporation an Ohio corporation the registrant or where appropriate to R.G Barry Corporation

and its subsidiaries The Companys annual reporting period is either fifty-two or fifty-three-week

period fiscal year ending annually on the Saturday nearest June 30 For definitional purposes as used

herein the terms listed below include the respective periods noted

Fiscal 2011 52 weeks ending July 2011

Fiscal 2010 53 weeks ended July 2010

Fiscal 2009 52 weeks ended June 27 2009

Fiscal 2008 52 weeks ended June 28 2008

Fiscal 2007 52 weeks ended June 30 2007

2006 fifty-two-week period 52 weeks ended July 2006

2006 transition period 26 weeks ended July 2006

2005 twenty-six-week period 26 weeks ended July 2005

Fiscal 2005 52 weeks ended December 31 2005



PART

Item Business

BUSINESS AND PRODUCTS

Overview

We are major developer and marketer of accessory footwear retail category that includes

slippers sandals hybrid and active fashion footwear slipper socks and hosiery We serve broad

spectrum of North American retailers of all size and retail categories with our family of proprietary and

licensed brands We also develop and source private label accessory footwear products for some of North

Americas leading retailers We report our operations as single operating segment

Our business model is flexible sourcing model where much of our costs are variable We do not

operate any manufacturing facilities and source all of our products from overseas resources We

implemented our current business model in 2004 after operating manufacturing-based business model

for 57 years since our founding in 1947 Under our current model we have recorded consistent

profitability and increased net sales annually since 2005 period that has included some of the most

difficult retail seasons in decades

We traditionally record approximately 70% of our net sales during the period from July through

December We have identified the popularity of slippers as holiday gift item as the main reason for our

net sales heavy seasonal weighting In 2006 we moved from December-ending fiscal year to fiscal

year that ends on the Saturday closest to June 30 This change was made to simplify planning and

financial reporting under such heavily seasonal business model One of our on-going corporate

objectives is to identify and acquire or to develop businesses that will add more seasonal balance to our

annual business cycle

We use our strengths in design and product development sourcing quality and value consumer

brand marketing retail category management supply chain and logistics and relationship building with

our key customers as critical elements in the long-term growth strategy for our core business This

strategy includes investing in and nurturing our own brands diversification through category-appropriate

acquisitions entering meaningful branding and licensing opportunities targeting new or underserved

retailers introducing innovative new products and brands and expanding internationally through

programs with some of our key retailing partners In July 2010 we licensed certain of the brands we own

to Olivet International Inc in five-year exclusive licensing agreement that gives Olivet exclusive rights

to develop and market variety of sleepwear active wear and accessory products bearing the DF by

DearfoamsTM DF Sport by DearfoamsTM and Utopia by DearfoamsTM trademarks for sale in North

American and South American markets

Within the framework of our growth strategy management also focuses on controlling risk

improving liquidity increasing cash reserves protecting the balance sheet generating an appropriate

return on investment and shareholders equity and keeping the business sustainable while taking the

kinds of intelligent risks that are necessary to encourage long-term profitable growth

Our executive offices are located at 13405 Yarmouth Road N.W Pickerington Ohio 43147 Our

telephone number is 614 864-6400 and our corporate Internet website can be accessed at

www.rgbarry.com this uniform resource locator or URL is an inactive textual reference only and is not

intended to incorporate our website into this 2010 Form 10-K We have been public company since

1962 Our common shares are principally traded on The NASDAQ Global Market NASDAQ-GM
under the trading symbol DFZ



Principal Products

Since introducing Angel Treads the worlds first foam-soled soft washable slipper in 1947 we
have developed number of our own accessory footwear brands as well as licensed well-known brands

from third parties Most of our brand lines both proprietary and licensed feature slippers for women and

men and focus on comfort Products sold under our own trademarks represented the majority of our

consolidated net sales in fiscal 2010 The remainder of our net sales came from our licensed brand

business and from the development sourcing and sale of accessory footwear products for retailers who

sell the footwear under their own private labels

We think our trademarks have significant commercial value In general trademarks remain valid

and enforceable as long as they are used in connection with our products and services and the required

registration renewals are filed The Company intends to continue the use of each of its trademarks and

renew each of its registered trademarks accordingly In addition to Angel Treads our current principal

brand names include Dearfoams DF by DearfoamsTM DF Sport by DearfoamsTM Terrasoles and

Utopia by DearfoamsTM Currently our principal products sold under trademarks licensed from third

parties include Levis brand slippers and sandals for men women and children Nautica slippers for

women and men and Superga canvas sneakers and active/fashion footwear for women men and

children

Dearfoams is our principal proprietary brand Since its introduction in 1958 Dearfoams has

according to our own consumer research become one of the most-recognized brand names in accessory

footwear Several basic slipper profiles are standard in the Dearfoams brand line its sub-brands and our

other proprietary and licensed slipper brands These classic footwear silhouettes are in demand throughout

the year The most significant changes to these traditional products are made in response to broadly

accepted fashion trends and can include slight variations in design ornamentation fabric and color These

products typically have uppers made of man-made fibers such as microfiber suede knit terry and velour

In addition corduroy nylon and an updated assortment of other man-made and natural materials may be

used We also regularly introduce new styles that may offer enhanced comfort elements fashion-forward

design elements or other innovative or new product attributes

Retail prices for most of our slipper-type products normally range from approximately $5 to $30

per pair depending on the style of footwear retail channel and retailer mark-up Most consumers who

are primarily female of our slippers fit within range of four-to-six universal sizes This is smaller

range of sizes than that found in traditional footwear and allows us to carry lower inventory levels than

many traditional footwear suppliers

We debut our new slipper product collections each spring and fall in conjunction with national

retail accessory buying markets and other national trade events We plan to continue the introduction of

updated and new products in response to fashion changes consumer taste preferences and changes in the

demographic makeup of our business

As part of our ongoing effort to diversify our business from product seasonal demographic and
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include sandals indoor/outdoor casual footwear and canvas/active fashion footwear Many of these

products are sold into retail channels and to consumers not previously served by our core slipper business

We sell these products under our own brand names such as Terrasoles and trademarks licensed from

third parties such as Superga Levis and Nautica

Denotes Company trademark registered in the United States Department of Commerce Patent and

Trademark Office

Denotes licensor trademark registered in the United States Department of Commerce Patent and

Trademark Office



We launched Terrasoles new kind of accessory footwear in August 2007 Terrasoles can be

worn beyond the home and was developed to specifically address the after-activity comfort footwear

needs of those engaged in or aspiring to variety of sports and life styles Our Terrasoles brand

products are sold through variety of retailers including warehouse clubs specialty stores outdoor

retailers Internet sites and catalogs Retail prices of these products range from $40 to $50 Terrasoles

products are displayed on self-selection basis and are intended to appeal primarily to the self-purchase

buyer

Licenses

In March 2009 we entered into four-year licensing agreement with Levi Strauss Co to

develop and market collection of slippers and sandals for the United States market Levis is one of

the most widely-recognized brands in the world Under the license we agreed to certain minimumroyalty

payments payable quarterly We have an option to renew the agreement for one additional three year-

term commencing on January 2013 and ending December 31 2015 if certain sales based terms

established under the agreement are met Our Levis line debuted in national chain department stores

in the fall of 2009 with Levis sandals debuting at retail for spring of 2010 Retail prices for these

products range from $20 to $30 Our products sold under the Levis brand are displayed on self-

selection basis and are intended to appeal to impulse and gift-giving buyers Net sales under this

brand were modest for fiscal 2010

In June 2007 we entered into licensing agreement with BasicNet S.p.A of Turin Italy through

BasicNets U.S affiliate Basic Properties America Inc collectively BasicNet to become the

exclusive North American licensee for Superga leading European canvas/active fashion footwear

brand Its products include vulcanized sneakers with canvas linen and leather upper materials Our

licensing agreement was modified in July 2009 and provides us with the right to sell Superga licensed

products through December 31 2011 We are currently negotiating with BasicNet for the renewal of the

agreement for an additional three-year term following the December 31 2011 current expiration date

Under our agreement BasicNet is responsible for all product development and design activities including

product fit and wear testing related to Superga Superga is sold through mall-based retailers in the

shoe departments of mid-range and premier department stores and through key specialty retailers Net

sales for Superga were modest in fiscal 2010

In January 2008 we entered into three-year licensing agreement with Nautica Apparel Inc

Nautica Apparel subsidiary of VF Sportswear Inc division of VF Corporation to become the

exclusive Nautica accessory footwear licensee in the United States Canada Mexico and Puerto Rico

Our Nautica licensing agreement will end on December 31 2010 Net sales under the Nautica brand

were modest in fiscal 2010

We believe that the Levis and Superga licenses have the potential to become important

components of our long-term growth strategy and to add additional counter-balance to the seasonal nature

of our core slipper business

Sales and Marketing

We market and sell our products across many retail channels with core collections of products

primarily sold through traditional promotional and national chain department stores mass merchants

discount stores warehouse clubs discount retailers specialty stores independent retailers catalogs and

Internet sites Our products are marketed to these retailers under various owned licensed or private label

brands Each product brand category is supported by brand president and cross-functional disciplines

including product design and development marketing finance sales analysis and planning and

information technology



Sales of our products to retailers are generally handled by sales account executives employed by
the Company or through our business-to-business Internet portal sites For the Terrasoles and Superga

brands we use some independent sales representatives as well as our own sales account executives

We do not finance our customers purchases beyond granting traditional payment terms at the

time shipments are made Limited return privileges are granted to some of the Companys retailing

partners In some cases we grant allowances to fund advertising and in-season promotional activities

The Company maintains sales office and showroom at East 37th Street in New York City

During the spring and fall of each year we present collections of our products to buyers representing the

Companys key retail customers at scheduled showings Buyers for our large retail customers also

periodically visit this sales office or our corporate facility in Pickerington Ohio We also maintain sales

administration office in Bentonville Arkansas that supports our business with Wal-Mart Stores Inc and

its affiliates Wal-Mart Stores Inc and its affiliates together represent our largest customer

Due to the heavy seasonal component of our business centered in the second half of the calendar

year our inventory investment is largest in early fall in order to support our customers needs for the fall

and holiday selling seasons During the holiday selling season we hire temporary merchandisers to assist

in the display and merchandising of the Companys products in number of department stores and chain

stores nationally We pioneered this point-of-sale retail selling floor management technique in the

accessories area many years ago and continue to believe that when it is combined with computerized

automatic demand-pull replenishment systems and various other marketing initiatives it optimizes our

holiday seasonal sales

Beginning in fiscal 2010 we launched multi-year multi-million dollar marketing/advertising

initiative that is focused on supporting our owned brands primarily the Dearfoams brands Our previous

marketing strategies focused on maximizing our presence at point of sale by expanding shelf and floor

space since substantially all of our products are intended to appeal to impulse and gift-giving buyers

The fiscal 2010 phase of our new marketing strategy involved extensive consumer research message

development and limited amount of outdoor and print consumer advertising As the project moves

forward these efforts will expand with the goals of increasing our dominance in the marketplace and

increasing our relevance to broader demographic section of accessory footwear consumers

Sourcing

We operate sourcing office in Dongguan City Peoples Republic of China PRC or China to

facilitate the procurement of most of our products Twenty-seven people work on various aspects of

sourcing and product development are employed in our Dongguan City office We purchase slipper-type

products from fourteen different third-party manufacturers all of whom are located in the PRC Purchases

of products currently sold under the Terrasoles brand are made primarily by different set of third-party

manufacturers located in China We purchase all Superga products through third-party Vietnam-

based suppliers who provide those same products to Supergas parent company BasicNet

Our overall experience with third-party manufacturers has been very good in terms of reliability

delivery times and product quality All of our purchases in China are conducted on an open account

basis We recognize however that reliance on third-party manufacturers does carry elements of risk

During fiscal 2010 we did not experience any substantial adverse quality or delivery issues We will

continue to ensure that the sourcing activities supported by our Dongguan office are effectively aligned to

ensure that the quality and delivery of products complies with our and our customers standards

We are dependent on methods of third-party transport to move our products from our third-party

manufacturers to our distribution facilities and from those facilities to our customers



Ethics human rights and the environment

It is fundamental goal of the Company to incorporate our core values of integrity quality

innovation leadership teamwork and community into all aspects of our business We demand the highest

business and personal ethical standards as well as compliance with all applicable governmental laws

rules and regulations from all of our team members and from all with whom we do business We only do

business with suppliers and vendors who operate legally and ethically

We are committed to protecting human rights and in ensuring that fair treatment humane

working conditions and equitable market wages exist with our suppliers Many of our key customers

conduct their own independent human rights audits of our third-party suppliers and share their findings

with us We also conduct direct supplier audits under various licensed product agreements held by the

Company

We are concerned about preserving and protecting our environment We strive to comply with all

federal state and local environmental protection laws at all Company locations Compliance with

provisions regulating the discharge of materials into the environment or otherwise relating to the

protection of the environment has not had material effect on our capital expenditures earnings or

competitive position We believe that the nature of our operations has little if any environmental impact

and we anticipate no material capital expenditures for environmental control facilities for the foreseeable

future We encourage our team members to conserve energy and other resources to reduce the amount of

waste the Company produces and to participate actively in recycling efforts We also expect all of our

suppliers to comply with appropriate environmental laws

RESEARCH AND DEVELOPMENT

During fiscal 2010 we relocated certain portions of our research and development activity from

our Pickerington Ohio offices to our sourcing office located in Dongguan City PRC Most of our

research and development activities in China relate to fabric selection and product testing Since nearly all

raw materials used in our products are sourced from China moving the related RD functions nearer to

the source was viewed as cost-saving and time-saving measure

The principal raw materials used in our products are textile fabrics threads foams other

synthetic products recycled micro fleece and mesh Our raw materials also include organic materials

such as cotton and bamboo as well as packaging materials and are available from wide range of

suppliers The Company has not experienced any significant difficulty in obtaining raw materials from

our respective suppliers in China

During fiscal 2010 fiscal 2009 and fiscal 2008 we spent approximately $2.3 million $2.4

million and $2.6 million respectively to support the development of new products and improvement of

existing products These RD activities were substantially supported by approximately 20 full-time

employees

SIGNIFICANT CUSTOMERS

Wal-Mart Stores Inc and its affiliates accounted for 35% 38% and 37% of our consolidated net

sales during fiscal 2010 fiscal 2009 and fiscal 2008 respectively Our sales to Wal-Mart Stores Inc and

its affiliates are less seasonal in nature than those to many of our other customers J.C Penney Company
Inc accounted for 10% 10% and 11% of our consolidated net sales during fiscal 2010 fiscal 2009 and

fiscal 2008 respectively



BACKLOGOF ORDERS

Due to the highly seasonal nature of our business the backlog of unfilled sales orders is often

largest in the July-August time frame as our customer orders are received in preparation for the holiday

selling season The backlogs of unfilled orders as of August month-end periods that ended on September

2010 August 29 2009 and September 2008 were $30.3 million $31.5 million and $30.8 million

respectively The backlogs of unfilled sales orders at the end of fiscal 2010 fiscal 2009 and fiscal 2008

were approximately $33.4 million $19.3 million and $29.2 million respectively comparisons between

years reflect differences in the timing of order receipts only and do not necessarily indicate growth or

decline in sales volume

We anticipate that large percentage of the unfilled sales orders as of the end of fiscal 2010 will

be filled during the first six months of fiscal 2011 Due to the unpredictability of the timing of receipt of

customer orders and given the heavy seasonality of our sales we believe that the status of the backlog of

orders may not necessarily be indicative of future business In recent years customers have placed their

orders much closer to the time of expected delivery trend that we expect will continue Our internal

product sourcing and logistics activities will continue to adapt to these and other marketplace changes in

an effort to ensure complete and timely deliveries to our customers

INVENTORY

Inventory risk resulting primarily from season-to-season fashion and customer-driven styling

changes makes managing exposure to obsolete inventory one of our supply chain groups key strategic

roles We have been very successful in managing inventory levels reducing inventory risks and lowering

inventory write-downs We have accomplished this by purchasing inventory closer to the time that it is

needed and by placing orders that are closely aligned with the visibility of customer demand

While we expect to continue tightly managing inventory levels we believe that inventory as

measured by dollars invested will continue to grow from its historic low at the end of fiscal 2009 at rate

appropriate to support our on-going growth We also believe that inventory turns is much more relevant

performance metric and we expect to continue turning inventory at rate in excess of four times per year

COMPETITION

We operate in relatively small segment of the overall accessory footwear retail category We

compete primarily on the basis of quality and comfort of our products price value service to our

customers and our marketing and merchandising expertise We believe that we are among the worlds

largest marketers of accessory footwear products However this category is very small component of

the highly competitive footwear industry In recent years companies that are engaged in other areas of

the footwear industry and apparel categories have begun to market accessory footwear Many of these

competitors have significantly greater financial distribution and marketing resources than we do In

addition some retailers have sought to source products directly for sale in their stores We are not aware

of any reliable published statistics that indicates our current market-share position in the footwear
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FACILITIES

We own our corporate headquarters building in Pickerington Ohio We lease sales and sales

administration offices in New York City and Bentonville Arkansas and sourcing representative office

in Dongguan City PRC We do not operate or own any manufacturing facilities

During fiscal 2010 we relied on our leased distribution center in San Angelo Texas and an

independent third-party logistics provider located in southern California to store products fulfill customer

orders and distribute our products The distribution center in Texas primarily supports shipments of

Terrasoles and Superga and other replenishment closeout product and e-commerce orders The third-

party logistics provider primarily supports case pack shipments to customers Our principal

administrative sales and distribution facilities are described more fully below under Item

Properties of this 2010 Form 10-K

EMPLOYEES

At the close of fiscal 2010 we employed approximately 154 full-time team members

Approximately 82% of our team members are employed in the United States

AVAILABLE INFORMATION

We make available free of charge through our Internet website all annual reports on Form 10-K

all quarterly reports on Form 10-Q all current reports on Form 8-K and all amendments to those reports

filed or furnished by the Company pursuant to Section 13a or 15d of the Securities Exchange Act of

1934 as amended the Exchange Act as well as our definitive annual meeting proxy materials as filed

pursuant to Section 14 of the Exchange Act These reports and proxy materials are available as soon as

reasonably practicable after they are submitted electronically to the Securities and Exchange Commission

the SEC
Item 1A Risk Factors

There are certain risks and uncertainties in our business that could cause our actual results to

differ materially from those anticipated The following risk factors should be read carefully in connection

with evaluating our business and in connection with the forward-looking statements contained in this

2010 Form 10-K Any of these risks could materially adversely affect our business our operating results

or our financial condition and the actual outcome of matters as to which forward-looking statements are

made

The global financial and general economic conditions that are largely out of our control may

adversely affect our financial condition and results of operations

Uncertainty about current and future global economic conditions may affect consumer spending

or our customers buying habits which would adversely affect demand for our products Our customers

may be impacted by the significant decrease in available credit If credit pressures or other financial

difficulties result in insolvency for these customers it could adversely impact our overall financial results

Furthermore reduced traffic in retail stores or limitations on the prices we can charge for our

products could reduce our sales and profit margins and have material adverse effect on our financial

condition and results of operations Our business financial condition results of operations and access to

credit as well as the trading price of our common shares could be materially and adversely affected if the

economy fails to stabilize or if current economic conditions do not improve or worsen
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Our North America business which is our primary business is dependent on our ability to continue

sourcing products from outside North America

We do not own or operate any manufacturing facilities and depend upon independent third parties

to manufacture all of our products During fiscal 2010 most of our products were manufactured in China

except for our Superga and most of our Terrasoles branded products which were sourced from third-

party manufacturers primarily located in Vietnam The inability of our third-party manufacturers to ship

orders of our products in timely manner or to meet our quality standards could cause us to miss

customer delivery date requirements and could result in cancellation of orders refusals to accept

deliveries or harm our ongoing business relationships Furthermore because quality is leading factor

when customers and retailers accept or reject goods any decline in the quality of the products produced

by our third-party manufacturers could be detrimental not only to particular order but to future

relationships with our customers

We compete with other companies for the production capacity of our third-party manufacturers

Some of these competitors have greater financial and other resources than we have and may have an

advantage in securing production from these manufacturers If we experience significant increase in

demand for our products or if one of our existing third-party manufacturers must be replaced we may
have to find additional third-party manufacturing capacity There can be no assurance that this additional

capacity will be available when required or will be available on terms that are similar to the terms that we

have with our existing third-party manufacturers or that are otherwise acceptable to us If it is necessary

for us to replace one or more of our third-party manufacturers particularly one that we rely on for

substantial portion of our products we may experience an adverse financial or operational impact such as

increased costs for replacement manufacturing capacity or delays in distribution and delivery of our

products to our customers which could cause us to lose customers or revenues because of late shipments

or customers being unwilling to absorb increased costs

Our international manufacturing operations are subject to the risks of doing business abroad

We currently purchase most of our products for all brands from China except for the Superga

brand products which are purchased primarily from Vietnam We expect to continue to purchase our

products from China and Vietnam at approximately the same levels in the future This international

sourcing subjects us to the risks of doing business abroad These risks include

the impact on product development sourcing or manufacturing from public health and

contamination risks in China Vietnam or other countries where we obtain or market our

products

acts of war and terrorism

the impact of disease pandemics

social and political disturbances and instability and similar events

strikes or other labor disputes
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shipping and transport problems

increased expenses particularly those impacted by any increase in oil prices

fluctuations in currency values and

general economic conditions in overseas markets
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Because we rely on Chinese and Vietnamese third-party manufacturers for substantial portion

of our product needs any disruption in our relationships with these manufacturers could adversely affect

our operations While we believe these relationships are strong if trade relations between the United

States and these countries deteriorate or are threatened by instability our business could be adversely

affected Although we believe that we could find alternative manufacturing sources there can be no

assurance that these sources would be available on terms that are favorable to us or comparable to those

with our current manufacturers Furthermore material change in the valuation of the Chinese or

Vietnamese currency could adversely impact our product costs resulting in significant negative impact

on our results of operations

Our concentration of customers could have material adverse effect on us and our success is

dependent on the success of our customers

As result of the continuing consolidation in the retail industry our customer base has decreased

thus increasing the concentration of our customers Our largest customer Wal-Mart Stores Inc and its

affiliates accounted for approximately 35% 38% and 37% of our consolidated net sales in fiscal 2010

fiscal 2009 and fiscal 2008 respectively The Companys sales to Wal-Mart Stores Inc and its affiliates

are less seasonal in nature than the rest of the Companys customers Wal-Mart Stores Inc and its

affiliates and J.C Penney Company Inc combined accounted for over 45% of our consolidated net sales

in fiscal 2010 If either of these customers reduced or discontinued its product purchases from us it

would adversely affect our results of operations Additionally in recent years several major department

stores have experienced consolidation and ownership changes In the future retailers may undergo

additional changes that could decrease the number of stores that carry our products which could

adversely affect our results

Our success is also impacted by the financial results and success of our customers If any of our

major customers or substantial portion of our customers generally experiences significant downturn

in business fails to remain committed to our products or brands or realigns affiliations with suppliers or

decides to purchase products directly from the manufacturer then these customers may reduce or

discontinue purchases from us which could have material adverse effect on our business results of

operations and financial condition We are also subject to the buying plans of our customers and if our

customers do not inform us of changes in their buying plans until it is too late for us to make necessary

adjustments to our product lines we may be adversely affected We do not have long-term contracts with

our customers and sales normally occur on an order-by-order basis As result customers can generally

terminate their relationship with us at any time

Our business faces cost pressures which could affect our business results

While we rely on third-party manufacturers as the source of our products the cost of these

products depends in part on these manufacturers raw materials labor and energy costs Thus our own

costs are subject to fluctuations particularly due to changes in the cost of raw materials and cost of labor

in the locations where our products are manufactured foreign exchange and interest rates

The accessory footwear product category is highly competitive

The accessory footwear product category in which we do most of our business is highly

competitive business If we fail to compete effectively we may lose market position We operate in

relatively small segment of the overall footwear industry supplying accessory footwear products We

believe that we are among the worlds largest marketers of accessory footwear products However this

category is very small component of the overall footwear industry In recent years companies that are

engaged in other areas of the footwear industry and apparel companies have begun to market accessory

footwear and many of these competitors have substantially greater financial distribution and marketing

resources than we do In addition many of the retail customers for our products have sought to import
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competitive products directly from manufacturers in China and elsewhere for sale in their stores on

private label basis The primary methods we use to compete in our industry include product design

product performance quality brand image price marketing and promotion and our ability to meet

delivery commitments to retailers major marketing or promotional success or technical innovation

by one of our competitors could adversely impact our competitive position

Our business is subject to consumer preferences and unanticipated shifts in tastes or styles could

adversely affect our sales and results of operations

The accessory footwear product category is subject to rapid changes in consumer preferences

Our performance may be hurt by our competitors product development sourcing pricing and innovation

as well as general changes in consumer tastes and preferences The accessory footwear product category

is also subject to sudden shifts in consumer spending and reduction in such spending could adversely

affect our results of operations Consumer spending may be influenced by the amount of consumer

disposable income which may fluctuate based on number of factors including general economic

conditions consumer confidence and business conditions Further consumer acceptance of new products

may fall below expectations and may result in excess inventories or the delay of the launch of new

product lines

If we inaccurately forecast consumer demand we may experience difficulties in handling consumer

orders or liquidating excess inventories and results of operations may be adversely affected

Our industry has relatively long lead times for the design and manufacture of products

Consequently we must commit to production in advance of orders based on our forecast of consumer

demands If we fail to forecast consumer demand accurately we may under- or over-source product

and encounter difficulty in handling customer orders or liquidating excess inventory and we may have to

sell excess inventory at reduced cost Further due to the fashion-oriented nature of our products rapid

changes in consumer preferences lead to an increased risk of inventory obsolescence While we believe

we have successfully managed this risk in recent years and believe we can successfully manage it in the

future our operating results will suffer if we are unable to do so

We rely on distribution centers to store and distribute our products and if there is natural

disaster or other serious disruption affecting any of these facilities or our methods of transport we

may be unable to effectively deliver products to our customers

We rely on our leased distribution center in San Angelo Texas as well as third-party logistics

provider located in California to store our products prior to distribution to our customers Significant

disruptions affecting the flow of products to and from these facilities due to natural disasters labor

disputes such as dock strikes or any other cause could delay receipt and shipment of portion of our

inventory This could impair our ability to timely deliver our products to our customers and negatively

impact our operating results Although we have insured our finished goods inventory for the amount

equal to its carrying cost plus normal profit expected in the sale of that inventory against losses due to

fire earthquake tornado flood and terrorist attacks our insurance program does not protect us against

losses due to delays in our receipt and distribution of products due to transport difficulties cancelled

orders or damaged customer relationships that could result from major disruption affecting the flow of

products to and from our distribution facilities

Further we are dependent on methods of third-party transport to move our products to and from

these facilities Circumstances may arise where we are unable to find available or reasonably priced

shipping to the United States from our manufacturers in China Vietnam and elsewhere or road and rail

transport to our customers If our methods of transport are disrupted or if costs increase sharply or

suddenly due to price increases of oil in the world markets or other inflationary pressures we may not be

able to affordably or timely deliver our products to our customers
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The seasonal nature of our business makes management more difficult and severely reduces cash

flow and liquidity during certain parts of the year

Our business is highly seasonal and much of the results of our operations are dependent on strong

performance during the last six months of the calendar year particularly the holiday selling season The

majority of our marketing and sales activities take place at industry market week and trade shows in the

spring and fall Our inventory is largest in the early fall to support our customers requirements for the

fall and holiday selling seasons Historically our cash position is strongest in the first six months of the

calendar year Unfavorable economic conditions affecting retailers during the fall and through the

holiday season in any year could have material adverse effect on the results of our operations for the

year Although our strategic business initiatives are focused on adding seasonal balance to our business

we can offer no assurance that the seasonal nature of our business will change in the future

We must satisfy minimum covenants regarding our financial condition in order to be able to

borrow under our current unsecured credit facility with The Huntington National Bank

Our current unsecured credit facility with The Huntington National Bank contains certain

minimum covenants regarding our financial condition and financial performance We have remained in

compliance with all of these covenants since we entered into the facility in March 2007 and we believe

that we will continue to comply with these covenants throughout the remainder of the term of the credit

facility agreement as amended June 26 2009 which runs through December 31 2011

We periodically invest funds in marketable securities in which ultimate repayment of amounts

invested depends on the financial capacity of the related financial institutions and corporations

involved

At July 2010 as part of our cash management and investment program we maintained

portfolio of $28.0 million in short-term investments consisting of $21.8 million in marketable investment

securities comprised variable rate demand notes and $6.2 million in other short-term investments The

marketable investment securities are classified as available-for-sale These marketable investment

securities are carried at cost which approximates fair value The other short-term investments are

classified as held-to-maturity securities and include several corporate bonds which have individual

maturity dates ranging from July 2010 to January 2011

Item lB Unresolved Staff Comments

No response required

Item Properties

The Company owns our corporate headquarters and executive offices located at 13405 Yarmouth

Road N.W in Pickerington Ohio facility that contains approximately 55000 square feet The

Company leases space aggregating approximately 188800 square feet at an approximate aggregate

annual rent of $565500 The following table describes the Companys principal leased properties during

fiscal 2010 and the operating status of those properties at July 2010

Approximate Approximate Lease

Location Use Square Feet Annual Rental Expires Renewals

East 37th Street 11th Floor Sales Office 5000 200000 2015 None

New York City N.Y

Distribution Center Shipping 172800 330000 2010 Month to

San Angelo Texas Distribution Center month
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Approximate Approximate Lease

Location Use Square Feet Annual Rental Expires Renewals

Brain Building 1st Floor Sourcing 9700 16000 2014 None
Nanwu Chisheng Industry Representative

Zone Houjie Town Office

Dongguan City

Guangdong Province

China

903 S.E 28th Street Suite Sales Administration 1300 19500 N/A Month to

Bentonville Arkansas Office month

The Company believes that all of our owned or leased buildings are well maintained in good

operating condition and suitable for their present uses

Item Legal Proceedings

The Company is from time to time involved in claims and litigation considered normal in the

ordinary course of our business There are no significant legal proceedings pending for the Company
While it is not feasible to predict the ultimate outcome in the opinion of management the resolution of

pending legal proceedings is not expected to have material effect on the Companys financial position

results of operations or cash flows

Item Reserved

Supplemental Item Executive Officers of the Registrant

The following table lists the names and ages of the executive officers of the Company as of

September 2010 the positions with the Company presently held by each executive officer and the

business experience of each executive officer during the past five years Unless otherwise indicated each

individual has had his or her principal occupation for more than five years The executive officers serve

at the discretion of the Board of Directors subject when applicable to their respective contractual rights

with the Company and in the case of Mr Tunney pursuant to an employment agreement There are no

family relationships among any of the Companys executive officers or directors

Positions Held with the Company and

Name Principal Occupation for Past Five Years

Greg Tunney 49 Chief Executive Officer of the Company since May 2006 President of the Company
since February 2006 Director of the Company since August 2006 Chief Operating

Officer of the Company from February 2006 to May 2006 President and Chief
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of mens and womens dress and casual footwear belts personal items outdoor

sportswear and travel apparel from 1998 to February 2005

Jose Ibarra 51 Senior Vice President Finance and Chief Financial Officer of the Company since

January 2009 Secretary of the Company from January 2009 to October 2009 Senior

Vice President Treasurer of the Company from July 2008 to January 2009 Vice

President Treasurer of the Company from December 2004 to June 2008
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Glenn Evans 49 Senior Vice President Global Operations of the Company since November 2006
Senior Vice President Creative Services and Sourcing of the Company from

November 2003 to November 2006

Yvonne 45 Senior Vice President Human Resources of the Company since February 2008 Vice

Kalucis President Human Resources of the Company from September 2007 to February 2008
Director of Human Resources for Limited Brands Inc specialty retailer of womens

intimate and other apparel beauty and personal care products and accessories under

various trade names from September 2005 to September 2007

Gregory 49 Senior Vice President Sales of the Company since April 2009 Vice President Sales

Ackard National Accounts of the Company from January 2008 to April 2009 National Account

Manager of the Company from May 2006 to January 2008 Vice President National

Accounts of the Company from January 2005 to May 2006

Lee Smith 48 Senior Vice President Creative Services of the Company since January 2009 Senior

Vice President Design and Product Development of the Company from December

2006 to January 2009 President of Pacific Footwear Services footwear business

development company engaged primarily in the research design development and

commercialization of footwear products for variety of customers from 2004 to 2006

Jeffrey Bua 56 President Licensed Brands of the Company since February 2009 Senior Vice

President Business Development of Sports Casuals International an apparel

development specialist for private brands from October 2003 to January 2009

Thomas JZ 55 President Private Brands of the Company since March 2009 Senior Vice President

Konecki Sales Licensing and Business Development of the Company from May 2007 to March

2009 Senior Vice President Sales and Business Development of the Company from

May 2006 to May 2007 President of H.S Trask Co division and Corporate Vice

President of Phoenix Footwear Group Inc supplier of diversified selection of

mens and womens dress and casual footwear and accessories from September 2003

to February 2006

Nancy Coons 50 President Dearfoams of the Company since July 2010 Principal of Coons

Consulting Co brand strategy product development and merchandising consultant

services from April 2008 to June 2010 General Manager Apparel of New Balance

Athletic Shoe Inc privately- held performance athletic and lifestyle brand from

February 2005 to October 2007 Business Manager Apparel of Oakley Inc premium

eyewear apparel and footwear brand company from August 2008 to January 2005
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PART II

Item Market for Registrants Common Efluity Related Stockholder Matters and Issuer

Purchases of Efluity Securities

Market and Dividend Information

Sales Price Per Common Share

Dividends

Declared per

Quarter High Low Close Common Share

Fiscal 2010 First 9.00 6.48 7.95

Second 9.20 7.68 8.60 0.05

Third 10.50 8.27 10.44 0.05

Fourth 12.00 8.10 11.30 0.05

Fiscal 2009 First 8.73 6.77 6.88

Second 6.90 4.85 4.99

Third 6.50 4.86 5.81

Fourth 7.63 5.26 7.63 0.25

Since March 10 2008 common shares of the Company have traded on NASDAQ-GM under the

DFZ symbol The high low and close sales prices shown above reflect the prices as reported in

NASDAQ-GM

Approximate Number of Registered Shareholders 1900 as of September 2010

On May 2009 the Companys Board of Directors declared and subsequently paid special

cash dividend of $0.25 per common share and thereafter has declared and paid quarterly dividends of

$0.05 per common share as shown above The declaration and payment of future dividends with respect

to the Companys common shares will depend on the earnings financial condition shareholders equity

levels and cash flow and business requirements of the Company as determined by the Board of

Directors

The unsecured Revolving Credit Agreement the Bank Facility between the Company and The

Huntington National Bank Huntington as amended June 26 2009 places no direct restrictions on the

Companys ability to pay cash dividends See the discussion of the Bank Facility in Note of the Notes

to Consolidated Financial Statements included in Item Financial Statements and Supplementary

Data and in Item Managements Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of

Operations in this 2010 Form 10-K

Information Regarding Recent Sales of Unregistered Securities

No disclosure is required under Item 701 of SEC Regulation S-K

Purchases of Equity Securities by Registrant

Neither the Company nor any affiliated purchaser as defined in Rule Ob- 18a under the

Securities Exchange Act of 1934 as amended purchased any common shares of the Company during the

fiscal quarter ended July 2010 The Company does not currently have in effect publicly announced

repurchase plan or program However the Company is authorized under the terms of its stock-based
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compensation plans to withhold common shares which would otherwise be issued in order to satisfi

related individual tax liabilities upon issuance of common shares in accordance with the terms of

restricted stock unit RSU agreements

Stock Performance Graph and Cumulative Total Shareholder Return

The graph below shows the cumulative total shareholder return assuming the investment of $100 on

January 2005 and the reinvestment of dividends thereafter on each of R.G Barry Corporation

common shares the NASDAQ Composite the Russell 2000 and Dow Jones U.S Footwear The

comparisons in the graph below are based upon historical data and are not indicative of or intended to

forecast future performance of R.G Barry Corporation common shares

$350

$300

$250

$200

$150

$100

$50

Company/Index/Market

RG Barry Corporation

NASDAQ Composite

Russell 2000

Dow Jones U.S Footwear

Fiscal Year Ending

1/1/2005 12/31/2005 7/1/2006 6/30/2007 6/28/2008 6/27/2009 7/03/2010

$100.00 $175.00 $191.76 $336.65 $242.33 $225.78 $339.58

$100.00 $102.13 $101.03 $121.96 $109.27 $87.63 $100.62

$100.00 $104.15 $110.48 $129.07 $115.98 $87.08 $100.38

$100.00 $102.43 $96.38 $142.14 $134.17 $110.49 $148.31

Note R.G Barry Corporation changed its fiscal year from the Saturday nearest to December 31 to the

Saturday nearest to June 30 during 2006 Accordingly there was six-month transition period as of July

2006 commensurate with this change in fiscal year-end

1/1/2005 12/31/2005 7/1/2006 6/30/2007 6/28/2008 6/27/2009 7/3/2010

ASSUMES $100 INVESTED ON JANUARY 12005

ASSUMES DIVIDENDS REINVESTED

18



It
e

m
S

e
le

c
te

d
F

in
a
n
c
ia

l
D

a
ta

S
e
le

c
te

d
F

in
a
n
c
ia

l
D

a
ta

D
o
ll
a
rs

in
th

o
u
s
a
n
d
s

e
x
c
e
p
t

p
e
r

co
m

m
o
n

s
h
a
re

a
m

o
u
n
ts

S
u
m

m
a

ry
o
f

O
p
e
ra

ti
n
g

R
e
s
u
lt
s

N
e

t
s
a
le

s

C
o

s
t

o
f

s
a
le

s

G
ro

s
s

p
r
o
fi
t

G
ro

s
s

p
r
o
fi
t

a
s

p
e
rc

e
n
t

o
f

n
e
t

s
a
le

s

S
e

ll
in

g
g
e
n
e
ra

l
a
n
d

a
d
m

in
is

tr
a
ti
v
e

e
x
p
e
n
s
e
s

G
a

in
o
n

in
s
u
ra

n
c
e

re
c
o
v
e
ry

G
a

in
o
n

s
a
le

o
f

la
n
d

R
e

s
tr

u
c
tu

ri
n
g

a
n
d

a
s
s
e
t

im
p
a
ir
m

e
n
t

c
h
a
rg

e
s

O
p
e
ra

ti
n
g

p
r
o
fi
t

lo
s
s

O
th

e
r

in
c
o
m

e

In
te

r
e
s
t

in
c
o
m

e
e
x
p
e
n
s
e

n
e
t

In
c
o

m
e

lo
s
s

fr
o
m

c
o
n
ti
n
u
in

g
o
p
e
ra

ti
o
n
s

b
e
fo

re
in

c
o
m

e
ta

x
e
s

In
c
o

m
e

ta
x

e
x
p
e
n
s
e

b
e
n
e
fi
t

E
a

rn
in

g
s

lo
s
s

fr
o
m

c
o
n
ti
n
u
in

g
o
p
e
ra

ti
o
n
s

L
o
s
s

e
a
rn

in
g
s

fr
o
m

d
is

c
o
n
ti
n
u
e
d

o
p
e
ra

ti
o
n
s

n
e
t

o
f

in
c
o
m

e
ta

x
e
s

in
c
lu

d
in

g
$
1
2
4
0

im
p
a
ir
m

e
n
t

lo
s
s

in
fi
s
c
a
l

2
0
0
7

N
e

t
e
a
rn

in
g
s

lo
s
s

A
d
d

it
io

n
a
l

D
a
ta

B
a

s
ic

e
a
rn

in
g
s

lo
s
s

p
e
r

c
o
m

m
o
n

s
h
a
re

c
o
n
ti
n
u
in

g
o
p
e
ra

ti
o
n
s

D
il
u

te
d

e
a
rn

in
g
s

lo
s
s

p
e
r

c
o
m

m
o
n

s
h
a
re

c
o
n
ti
n
u
in

g
o
p
e
ra

ti
o
n
s

B
a

s
ic

e
a
rn

in
g
s

lo
s
s

p
e
r

c
o
m

m
o
n

s
h
a
re

d
is

c
o
n
ti
n
u
e
d

o
p
e
ra

ti
o
n
s

D
il
u

te
d

e
a
rn

in
g
s

lo
s
s

p
e
r

c
o
m

m
o
n

s
h
a
re

d
is

c
o
n
ti
n
u
e
d

o
p
e
ra

ti
o
n
s

B
a

s
ic

n
e
t

e
a
rn

in
g
s

lo
s
s

p
e
r

c
o
m

m
o
n

s
h
a
re

D
il
u

te
d

n
e
t

e
a
rn

in
g
s

lo
s
s

p
e
r

c
o
m

m
o
n

s
h
a
re

D
iv

id
e
n
d
s

d
e
c
la

re
d

D
iv

id
e
n
d
s

d
e
c
la

re
d

p
e
r

c
o
m

m
o
n

s
h
a
re

B
o

o
k

v
a
lu

e
p
e
r

c
o
m

m
o
n

s
h
a
re

a
t

th
e

e
n
d

o
f

p
e
ri
o
d

A
n

n
u
a
l

in
c
re

a
s
e

d
e
c
re

a
s
e

in
n
e
t

s
a
le

s

In
c
o

m
e

lo
s
s

fr
o
m

c
o
n
ti
n
u
in

g
o
p
e
ra

ti
o
n
s

b
e
fo

re
in

c
o
m

e
ta

x
e
s

a
s

p
e

rc
e
n
ta

g
e

o
f

n
e
t

s
a
le

s

N
e

t
e
a
rn

in
g
s

lo
s
s

a
s

p
e
rc

e
n

ta
g
e

o
f

b
e
g
in

n
in

g
to

ta
l

s
h
a
re

h
o
ld

e
rs

e
q

u
it
y

F
if
ty

-
th

r
e
e

w
e
e
k
s

e
n
d
e
d

F
if
ty

-t
w

o
w

e
e
k
s

e
n
d
e
d

F
if
ty

-
tw

o

w
e
e
k
s

e
n
d
e
d

T
w

e
n

ty
-S

ix
W

e
e

k
s

E
n
d
e
d

F
if
ty

-
tw

o

w
e
e
k
s

e
n
d
e
d

F
is

c
a
l

F
is

c
a
l

F
is

c
a
l

F
is

c
a
l

J
u
ly

J
u

ly
J
u

ly
F

is
c
a

l

2
0
1
0

2
0
0
9

2
0
0
8

2
0
0
7

2
0
0
6

2
0
0
6

2
0
0
5

2
0
0
5

$
1
2
3
7
8
7

$
1
1
3
8
1
7

$
1
0
9
4
9
9

$
1
0
5
3
3
2

$
9
7
4
6

7
$

2
8

4
5

5
$

2
8

6
3

4
$

9
7

6
4

6

7
2
.4

2
8

7
0
.3

5
0

6
4
.5

2
0

6
3
.5

6
1

5
5
2

2
9

1
6

2
9

5
1

5
5

8
2

5
4

5
1

5

5
1
3
5
9

4
3
4
6

4
4
9
7
9

4
1
7
7
1

4
2
2

3
8

1
2

1
6

0
1

3
0

5
2

4
3

1
3

1

4
1
.5

%
3
8
.2

%
4
1
.1

%
3
9
.7

%
4
3
.3

%
4
2
.7

%
4
5
.6

%
4
4
.2

%

3
6
6
2
3

3
2
9
7
1

3
2
1
2
6

1
3
6
2

3
0
3
6
7

3
3
3

0
2

1
3

8
8

6
1

3
7

7
9

3
3

2
1

7

1
4
7
3
6

1
0
4
9
6 1

5

1
4
2
1
5 5

0

8
7
8

1
7
9

1
2
1
0
3 1
4
6

3
8

2
5

5
1

1
1

4
0

2

2
5

5
6

4
2

8
2

1
3
0

3
4

9

1
0

7
6 9
0

1
6

1
9

8
2

9
5

3
8

5

2
4
7

6
7
0

5
8
5

1
6
6

7
4

4
1

1
4

2
0

7
8

3
8

1
4
9
8
3

1
1
1
8
1

1
4
8
5
0

1
2
0
8
3

4
7

6
9

4
2

6
6

1
1

9
3

7
8

4
2

5
5
8
3

4
1
8
9

5
0
6
5

1
3
6
5
2

1
1

2
1

1
2

9
4
0
0

6
9
9
2

9
7
8
5

2
5
7
3
5

4
6

5
7

4
2

6
6

1
1

9
3

7
7

3
0

9
4
0
0

6
9
9
2

9
7
8
5

5
9
0

2
5
1
4
5

2
0

6

4
8

6
3

6
7

4
1

9
9

1
7
9

1
0

1
4

3
1

8

8
0

4
8

0
.8

6
0
.6

6
0
.9

3
2
.5

5
0

.4
7

0
.4

3
0
.1

2
0

.7
8

0
.8

5

0
.8

6

0
.6

5

0
.6

6

0
.9

2

0
.9

3

2
.4

6

0
.0

6

0
.0

6

2
.4

9

0
.4

5

0
.0

2

0
.0

2

0
.4

9

0
.4

3

0
.0

1

0
.0

1

0
.4

2

0
.1

2

0
.0

2

0
.0

2

0
.1

0

0
.7

6

0
.0

3

0
.0

3

0
.8

2

0
.8

5
0
.6

5
0
.9

2
2
.4

0
0

.4
7

0
.4

2
0
.1

0
0

.7
9

1
6
3
0

2
6
8
1

0
.1

5
0
.2

5

4
.9

5
4
.2

8
4
.3

1
3
.4

6
0

.8
7

0
.9

0
0

.4
0

1
.0

9

8
.8

%
3
.9

%
4
.0

%
8
.1

%
.0

2
%

.6
%

1
.2

%
1
.4

%

1
2
.1

%
9
.8

%
1
3
.6

%
1
1
.5

%
4
.9

%
1

5
.0

%
4

.2
%

8
.0

%

2
0
.5

%
1
5
.2

%
2
7
.0

2
%

2
7
9
.5

%
4
3
.8

%
3

7
.8

%
2

0
.4

%
1
6
1
.6

%

1
9



B
a

s
ic

w
e
ig

h
te

d
-a

v
e
ra

g
e

n
u
m

b
e
r

o
f

c
o
m

m
o
n

s
h
a
re

s
o
u
ts

ta
n
d
in

g

D
il
u

te
d

w
e
ig

h
te

d
a
v
e
ra

g
e

n
u
m

b
e
r

o
f

c
o
m

m
o
n

s
h
a
re

s
o
u
ts

ta
n
d
in

g

F
in

a
n

c
ia

l
P

o
s
it
io

n
a
t

th
e

E
n
d

o
f

P
e
ri
o
d

T
o

ta
l

c
u
rr

e
n
t

a
s
s
e
ts

T
o

ta
l

c
u
rr

e
n
t

li
a
b
il
it
ie

s

W
o

rk
in

g
c
a
p
it
a
l

L
o

n
g

-t
e
rm

d
e
b
t

e
x
c
lu

d
in

g
c
u
rr

e
n
t

in
s
ta

ll
m

e
n
ts

T
o

ta
l

s
h
a
re

h
o
ld

e
rs

e
q
u
it
y

N
e

t
p
ro

p
e
rt

y
p
la

n
t

a
n
d

e
q
u
ip

m
e

n
t

T
o

ta
l

a
s
s
e
ts

O
th

e
r

D
a
ta

C
a

p
it
a
l

e
x
p
e
n
d
it
u
re

s

D
e

p
re

c
ia

ti
o
n

a
n
d

a
m

o
rt

iz
a
ti
o
n

o
f

p
ro

p
e
rt

y
p
la

n
t

a
n
d

e
q
u
ip

m
e
n
t

F
if
ty

-
th

r
e
e

w
e
e
k
s

e
n
d
e
d

F
if
ty

-t
w

o
w

e
e
k
s

e
n
d
e
d

F
if
ty

-
tw

o

w
e
e
k
s

e
n
d
e
d

T
w

e
n

ty
-S

ix
W

e
e

k
s

E
n

d
e

d

F
if
ty

-
tw

o

w
e
e
k
s

e
n
d
e
d

F
is

c
a
l

F
is

c
a
l

F
is

c
a
l

F
is

c
a
l

J
u
ly

J
u

ly
J
u

ly
F

is
c
a

l

2
0
1
0

2
0
0
9

2
0
0
8

2
0
0
7

2
0
0
6

2
0
0
6

2
0
0
5

2
0
0
5

1
0
8
9
3

1
0
6
3
3

1
0
4
6
9

1
0
0
8
9

9
9

2
9

9
9

6
1

9
8

3
9

9
8

6
9

1
1
0
3
6

1
0
7
3
7

1
0
6
9
1

1
0
4
6
2

1
0
3

1
5

9
9

6
1

9
8

3
9

1
0

1
4

8

$
6
9
4
0
5

$
6
0
5
8
2

$
5
5
4
7
6

$
4
9
6
8
6

$
3
4
8

0
9

$
3

4
8

0
9

$
3

0
8

9
1

$
3

6
0

6
6

1
0
3
1
2

9
7
0
6

9
7
5
1

1
5
4
9
0

1
8
8

1
6

1
8

8
1

6
1

7
7

8
5

1
5

3
4

8

5
9
0
9
3

5
0
8
7
6 9
7

4
5
7
2
5

1
8
7

3
4
1
9
6

2
7
2

1
5
9

9
3

4
3

9

1
5

9
9

3

4
3

9

1
3

1
0

6

2
9

4

2
0

7
1

8

5
3
3

5
4
5
9
6

4
5
9
0
8

4
6
0
2
9

3
6
2
1
5

8
9

9
6

8
9

9
6

3
9

0
0

1
1

1
0

9

4
1
2
5

3
7
4
3

3
1
4
9

2
2
5
5

2
4

1
9

2
4

1
9

2
5

4
2

2
3

7
1

8
3
3
6
9

7
5
0
8
3

6
7
6
4
3

6
3
5
2
8

4
0
4

4
4

4
0

4
4

4
3

6
7

2
9

4
1

8
3

1

1
1
8
1

1
3
6
5

1
5
6
9

6
3
3

2
6

3
2

6
2

3
6

4
7

R

8
6
7

7
7
5

6
4
1

5
6
0

2
3

9
2

3
9

3
1

8
5

9
0

S
e
e

It
e
m

M
a
n
a
g
e
m

e
n
ts

D
is

c
u
s
s
io

n
a
n
d

A
n
a
ly

s
is

o
f

F
in

a
n
c
ia

l
C

o
n
d
it
io

n
a
n
d

R
e
s
u
lt
s

o
f

O
p
e
ra

ti
o
n
s

fo
r

in
fo

rm
a
ti
o
n

re
g
a
rd

in
g

th
e

fa
c
to

r
s

th
a

t
h
a
v
e

a
ff

e
c
te

d
th

e
fi
n

a
n

c
ia

l
r
e

s
u

lt
s

o
f

th
e

C
o
m

p
a
n
y

In
M

a
y

2
0
0
6

th
e

B
o
a
rd

o
f

D
ir
e
c
to

rs
o
f

R
.G

B
a
rr

y
C

o
rp

o
ra

ti
o
n

a
p
p
ro

v
e
d

c
h
a
n
g
e

in
th

e
C

o
m

p
a
n
y
s

fi
s
c
a
l

y
e
a
r-

e
n
d

fr
o
m

th
e

S
a

tu
rd

a
y

c
lo

s
e
s
t

to
D

e
c
e

m
b

e
r

3
1

to
th

e
S

a
tu

rd
a

y
c
lo

s
e
s
t

to

J
u
n
e

3
0

A
c
c
o
rd

in
g
ly

d
a
ta

is
p
re

s
e
n
te

d
in

th
is

2
0
1
0

F
o
rm

1
0
-K

fo
r

th
e

tw
e
n
ty

-s
ix

w
e
e
k

p
e
ri
o
d

fr
o
m

J
a
n
u
a
ry

2
0
0
6

th
ro

u
g
h

J
u
ly

2
0

0
6

o
th

e
rw

is
e

k
n

o
w

n
a

s
th

e
2
0
0
6

tr
a

n
s
it
io

n
p
e
ri
o
d

T
h
e

C
o
m

p
a
n
y
s

a
n
n
u
a
l

r
e
p
o
r
ti
n
g

p
e
ri
o
d

is
e
it
h
e
r

fi
ft
y
-
tw

o
o
r

fi
ft
y
-
th

r
e
e
-
w

e
e
k

p
e
ri
o
d

fi
s
c
a
l

y
e
a
r

F
o
r

a
ll

p
e
ri
o
d
s

e
x
c
e
p
t

th
e

fi
ft
y
-t

w
o
-w

e
e
k

p
e
ri
o
d

e
n
d
e
d

J
u

ly
2
0
0
6

a
n
d

th
e

tw
e
n
ty

-s
ix

-w
e
e
k

p
e
ri
o
d

e
n
d
e
d

J
u
ly

2
0
0
5

th
e

s
e
le

c
te

d
fi
n
a
n
c
ia

l
d
a
ta

s
e
t

fo
r
th

a
b
o
v
e

u
n
d
e
r

S
u
m

m
a
ry

o
f

O
p
e
ra

ti
n
g

R
e
s
u
lt
s

A
d
d
it
io

n
a
l

D
a
ta

F
in

a
n
c
ia

l
P

o
s
it
io

n
a

t
th

e
E

n
d

o
f

P
e

ri
o

d
a
n
d

O
th

e
r

D
a
ta

a
re

d
e
ri
v
e
d

fr
o
m

th
e

C
o
m

p
a
n
y
s

a
u
d
it
e
d

c
o
n
s
o
li
d
a
te

d
fi
n
a
n
c
ia

l
s
ta

te
m

e
n
ts

F
u
rt

h
e
rm

o
re

th
e

s
e
le

c
te

d
fi
n
a
n
c
ia

l
d
a
ta

s
e
t

fo
r
th

a
b
o
v
e

r
e
fl
e
c
t

th
e

im
p
a
c
t

o
f

th
e

d
e
c
is

io
n

m
a
d
e

in
fi
s
c
a
l

2
0
0
7

b
y

th
e

B
o
a
rd

o
f

D
ir
e
c
to

rs
o
f

R
.G

B
a
rr

y
C

o
rp

o
ra

ti
o
n

to
s
e
ll

th
e

C
o

m
p

a
n

y
s

1
0

0
%

o
w

n
e
rs

h
ip

in
E

s
c
a
p
a
d
e

S
.A

a
n
d

it
s

F
a
rg

e
o
t

e
t

C
o
m

p
a
g
n
ie

S
.A

s
u
b
s
id

ia
ry

c
o
ll
e
c
ti
v
e
ly

F
a
rg

e
o
t

A
s

r
e
s
u
lt

o
f

th
is

a
c
ti
o
n

a
n
d

c
o
n
s
is

te
n
t

w
it
h

e
s
ta

b
li
s
h
e
d

a
c
c
o

u
n

ti
n

g
s
ta

n
d

a
rd

s
th

e
r
e

s
u

lt
s

o
f

o
p
e
ra

ti
o
n
s

fo
r

F
a
rg

e
o
t

h
a
v
e

b
e
e
n

re
p
o
rt

e
d

a
s

d
is

c
o
n
ti
n
u
e
d

o
p
e
ra

ti
o
n
s

fo
r

th
e

p
e
ri
o
d
s

re
p
o
rt

e
d

a
s

a
p
p
li
c
a
b
le

in
th

e
C

o
m

p
a
n
y
s

C
o
n
s
o

li
d

a
te

d
S

ta
te

m
e

n
ts

o
f

In
c
o
m

e
in

c
lu

d
e
d

in
th

is
2
0
1
0

F
o
rm

1
0
-K

F
u
rt

h
e
rm

o
re

th
e

a
s
s
e
ts

a
n
d

li
a
b
il
it
ie

s
r
e
la

te
d

to
th

e
s
e

d
is

c
o
n
ti
n
u
e
d

o
p
e
ra

ti
o
n
s

w
e
re

r
e
c
la

s
s
if
ie

d
to

c
u
rr

e
n
t

a
s
s
e
ts

h
e
ld

fo
r

d
is

p
o
s
a
l

a
n
d

c
u
rr

e
n
t

li
a
b
il
it
ie

s
a
s
s
o
c
ia

te
d

w
it
h

a
s
s
e
ts

h
e
ld

fo
r

d
is

p
o
s
a
l

a
t

J
u
n
e

3
0

2
0
0
7

T
h
is

d
a
ta

is
in

c
lu

d
e
d

a
s

p
a
r
t

o
f

c
u
rr

e
n
t

a
s
s
e
ts

a
n
d

c
u
rr

e
n
t

li
a
b
il
it
ie

s
in

th
e

s
e
le

c
te

d
fi
n
a
n
c
ia

l
d
a
ta

p
re

s
e
n
te

d
a
b
o
v
e

fo
r

th
e

re
le

v
a
n
t

p
e
ri
o
d

T
h

e
s
a
le

o
f

F
a

rg
e

o
t

w
a
s

c
o

m
p

le
te

d
in

J
u

ly

2
0
0
7

W
o
rk

in
g

c
a
p
it
a
l

is
to

ta
l

c
u
rr

e
n
t

a
s
s
e
ts

le
s
s

to
ta

l
c
u
rr

e
n
t

li
a
b
il
it
ie

s

In
F

is
c
a
l

2
0
0
7

th
e

C
o
m

p
a

n
y

re
v
e
rs

e
d

ta
x

v
a
lu

a
ti
o
n

re
s
e
rv

e
s

o
f$

l7
7
9
2

d
u
e

to
th

e
d
e
te

rm
in

a
ti
o
n

th
a
t

d
e
fe

rr
e
d

ta
x

a
s
s
e
ts

h
e
ld

b
y

th
e

C
o

m
p

a
n

y
w

e
re

m
o
re

li
k
e
ly

th
a
n

n
o
t

to
b
e

r
e

a
li
z
e

d

2
0



Item Managements Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations

Introduction

Our Managements Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations MDA is

intended to provide investors and others with information we believe is necessary to understand our financial condition

changes in financial condition results of operations and cash flows This MDA should be read in conjunction with our

Consolidated Financial Statements and related Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements and other information included

in Item Financial Statements and Supplementary Data in this 2010 Form 10-K All dollar amounts except as

stated on per common share basis are rounded and represent approximate amounts when cited in the text within this

section

Our Company is engaged in designing sourcing marketing and distributing accessory footwear products We
define accessory footwear as product category that encompasses primarily slippers sandals hybrid and active fashion

footwear and slipper socks Our products are sold predominantly in North America through department stores chain

stores and mass merchandising channels of distribution Unless the context otherwise requires references in this MDA
to the Company refer to R.G Barry Corporation and its consolidated subsidiaries when applicable

Summary of Results for Fiscal 2010

During fiscal 2010 we remained focused on achieving our principal goals

grow our business profitably by pursuing core group of initiatives based on innovation within our product

lines

continue efforts to strengthen the relationships with our retailing partners and open distribution of our

products in new retail channels and

further enhance the image of our brands through both customer and consumer advertising

During fiscal 2010 we accomplished the following

We achieved an 8.8 percent increase in our consolidated net sales as compared to fiscal 2009

We had pre-tax earnings of approximately $15.0 million or 12.1% of net sales

We did not use our Bank Facility which is described under the caption Liquidity and Capital Resources

below during fiscal 2010 and ended the year with no outstanding indebtedness under the Bank Facility

We reported cash and cash equivalents on hand of approximately $17.0 million and short-term investments

of approximately $28.0 million at the end of fiscal 2010

Looking Ahead to Fiscal 2011 and Beyond

Looking ahead to fiscal 2011 and beyond our strategy continues to center on growing market share in existing channels

pursuing new retail opportunities expanding our business internationally and growing through appropriate acquisitions

We have demonstrated that for 16 consecutive quarters our model can perform at or above levels consistent with top

quartile performance and we expect to deliver performance that drives growth and long-term shareholder value

See the discussion under the caption Item 1A Risk Factors in this 2010 Form 10-K
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Fiscal 2010 Results from Operations Compared to Fiscal 2009

The discussion in this section compares our results of operations for fiscal 2010 to those in fiscal 2009 Each

dollar amount and percentage change noted below reflects the change between these periods unless otherwise indicated

Fiscal 2010 had fifty-three weeks compared to fifly-two weeks for fiscal 2009 however the additional week in fiscal

2010 had no significant effect on sales or operating results as compared to fiscal 2009

During fiscal 2010 net sales increased by $10.0 million or 8.8% This net sales increase reflected primarily

increased shipments in the mass merchandising and discount channels and reflected our continued success with product

offerings and sales initiatives with customers in those channels All other channels combined had flat to nominal net sales

increases over fiscal 2009

Gross profit increased by $7.9 million Gross profit as percent of net sales was 41.5 percent in fiscal 2010 and

38.2 percent in fiscal 2009 The increases in gross profit dollars and in gross profit as percent of net sales reflected both

increased shipments in fiscal 2010 over fiscal 2009 and the impact of lower product costs due primarily to availability of

supplier capacity and the reduction of oil prices in the period in which we placed our fall season orders in fiscal 2010

versus the same period in the prior year In addition the increase in gross profit as percentage of net sales reflected in

part the positive impact of higher margin in certain of our products shipped during the third quarter of fiscal 2010 as

compared to the same period in fiscal 2009

Selling general and administrative SGA expense increased by $3.7 million or 11.1 percent As percent of

net sales SGA expenses were 29.6 percent for fiscal 2010 versus 29.0 percent for fiscal 2009 The net increase in

SGA expenses was due primarily to the following

$2.4 million increase in payroll costs represented primarily by increases in incentive severance and health

benefit costs

$1.5 million increase in costumer and consumer advertising expense as part of multi-year marketing

program in support of our Dearfoams brand

$623 thousand increase in pension expense due primarily to the effect of lower discount rates and pension

asset market values on our annual pension expense and to the one-time impact of settlement loss incurred on

lump-sum payment made to former executive as full settlement of his nonqualified supplemental retirement

plan benefit upon his retirement

The higher expenses noted above were partially offset by $393 thousand decrease in bad debt expense and

$524 thousand decrease in expenses in broad range of areas none of which were individually significant

The decrease in interest income of $438 thousand resulted from the lower interest rates available during fiscal

2010 than had been available during fiscal 2009

Interest expense decreased nominally in fiscal 2010 compared to fiscal 2009 Due to our continuing profitability

over time we had no borrowings under our Bank Facility as described further under the caption Liquidity and Capital

Resources below

Based on the results of operations noted above we reported net earnings of approximately $9.4 million in fiscal

2010 or $.85 per diluted common share which represented 34.4% increase when compared to the net earnings results of

$7.0 million in fiscal 2009 or $0.65 per common diluted share
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Fiscal 2009 Results from Operations Compared to Fiscal 2008

The discussion in this section compares our results of operations for fiscal 2009 to those in fiscal 2008 Each

dollar amount and percentage change noted below reflects the change between these periods unless otherwise indicated

During fiscal 2009 net sales increased by $4.3 million or 3.9% The net sales increase was primarily due to

increased shipments to our customers in the warehouse club and catalog and Internet channels partially offset by
decreased shipments reported to customers in the mass merchandising department store specialty and independent store

channels The volume changes reflect our continued success with product offerings and sales initiatives with customers in

the warehouse club channel as well as catalog and Internet-based customers In addition these volume changes reflect the

effect of the very challenging economic and retail climate experienced with most of our customers during most of fiscal

2009

Gross profit decreased by $1.5 million Gross profit as percent of net sales was 38.2 percent in fiscal 2009 and

41.1 percent in fiscal 2008 The decreases in both gross profit dollars and in gross profit as percent of net sales were due

primarily to increases in the average product cost experienced year over year The increase in average product cost was
driven primarily by an increase in oil prices and changes in the exchange rate of Chinese currency which negatively

impacted the fall selling season as orders to purchase goods were placed beginning in April 2008 The product price

increases combined with an intense promotional selling environment in tough retail economic climate were major

factors in our gross profit results for fiscal 2009

Selling general and administrative SGA expenses increased by $845 thousand or 2.6 percent As percent

of net sales SGA expenses were 29.0 percent for fiscal 2009 versus 29.3 percent for fiscal 2008 The net increase in

SGA expenses was due primarily to the following

$1.1 million increase in payroll and related expenses which reflected the Companys organizational growth

and repositioning as part of our long-term strategic direction

$463 thousand increase in customer bad debt expense reflecting the impact of several customer bankruptcies

during fiscal 2009 and

$191 thousand net increase in variety of other expense areas

The expense increases noted above were partially offset by the following

$909 thousand decrease in advertising expense incurred in fiscal 2008 as part of the initial launch of our

newer brand initiatives undertaken that year

For fiscal 2008 we reported gain of approximately $1.4 million from an insurance recovery No similar event

occurred during fiscal 2009

The increase in interest income of $71 thousand resulted from the increase in our invested funds during fiscal

2009 which were available due to our profitability and liquidity over the last twelve months

Interest expense decreased nominally by $14 thousand Due to our continuing profitability over time we had no

borrowings under our Bank Facility as described further under the caption Liquidity and Capital Resources below

Based on the results of operations noted above we reported net earnings of $7.0 million in fiscal 2009 or $0.65

per diluted common share compared to net earnings of $9.8 million in fiscal 2008 or $0.92 per diluted common share
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Liquidity and Capital Resources

Our primary source of revenue and cash flow is our operating activities in North America When cash inflows are

less than cash outflows we also have access to amounts under our Bank Facility subject to its terms We may seek to

finance future capital investment programs through various methods including but not limited to cash flow from

operations and borrowings under our current or additional credit facilities

Our liquidity requirements arise from the funding of our working capital needs which include primarily

inventory other operating expenses and accounts receivable funding of capital expenditures and repayment of our

indebtedness Generally most of our product purchases from third-party manufacturers are acquired on an open account

basis and to lesser extent through trade letters of credit Such trade letters of credit are drawn against our Bank Facility

at the time of shipment of the products and reduce the amount available under our Bank Facility when issued

Total cash and cash equivalents were $17.0 million at July 2010 compared to $14.3 million at June 27 2009

Short-term investments were $28.0 million at July 2010 compared to $25.0 million at June 27 2009

At July 2010 as part of our cash management and investment program we maintained portfolio of $28.0

million in short-term investments including $21.8 million in marketable investment securities consisting of variable rate

demand notes and $6.2 million in other short-term investments The marketable investment securities are classified as

available-for-sale These marketable investment securities are carried at cost which approximates fair value The other

short-term investments are classified as held-to-maturity securities and include several corporate bonds which had

individual maturity dates ranging from July 2010 to January 2011

Operating Activities

During fiscal 2010 our operations generated $6.8 million in cash This operating cash flow was primarily the

result of our net earnings of $9.4 million for the period adjusted for non-cash activities such as deferred income tax

expense of $4.0 million gross of an offsetting $1.3 million excess tax benefit credit recognized on stock options exercised

and restricted stock unit vested depreciation expense of $867 thousand and stock-based compensation expense of $840

thousand changes in our working capital accounts and payments on our pension and other obligations In fiscal

2010 significant changes in working capital accounts included higher amounts of inventory which were partially offset by

lower amounts of accounts receivable as discussed in more detail below

During fiscal 2009 our operations generated $17.3 million in cash This operating cash flow was primarily the

result of our net earnings of $7 million for the period adjusted for non-cash activities such as deferred income tax

expense of $3.5 million depreciation and stock-based compensation expense of $775 thousand and $938 thousand

respectively and changes in our working capital accounts as well as payments on our pension and other obligations

In fiscal 2009 significant changes in working capital accounts included lower amounts of accounts receivable and

inventory

During fiscal 2008 our operations generated $8.7 million in cash This operating cash flow was primarily the

result of our net earnings of $9.8 million for the period adjusted for non-cash activities such as deferred income tax

expense of $4.6 million depreciation and stock-based compensation expense of $641 thousand and $698 thousand

respectively and changes in our working capital accounts as well as payments on our pension and other obligations

In fiscal 2008 significant changes in working capital accounts included higher amounts of accounts receivable and lower

accounts payable and accrued expenses offset by lower amounts of inventory

Our working capital ratio which is calculated by dividing total current assets by total current liabilities was 6.71

at July 2010 6.21 at June 27 2009 and 5.7 at June 28 2008 The increase in our working capital ratio from the end

of fiscal 2008 to the end of fiscal 2010 was primarily driven by an increase in cash and short-term investments resulting

from our profitability over those reporting periods

Changes during fiscal 2010 in the primary components of our working capital accounts were as follows

Net accounts receivable decreased by approximately $1.2 million during fiscal 2010 primarily due to faster

collections and the timing of customer deductions
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Net inventories increased by $5.0 million during fiscal 2010 reflecting primarily return during fiscal 2010 to

more historical levels of inventory required to support our customers on an ongoing basis particularly in the

replenishment business

Accounts payable decreased by $289 thousand during fiscal 2010 due primarily to the timing and payment of

certain operational expenses as well as our purchases from third-party manufacturers

Accrued expenses increased by $602 thousand during fiscal 2010 primarily due to higher incentive bonus

accruals offset in part by lower short-term pension liabilities

Investing Activities

During fiscal 2010 investing activities used $4.2 million in cash Purchases of short-term investments comprised

$3.0 million of this amount Capital expenditures were $1.2 million and primarily consisted of building and leasehold

improvements as well as purchases of software and computer equipment

During fiscal 2009 investing activities used $14.5 million in cash Purchases of short-term investments

comprised $13.1 million of this amount Capital expenditures were $1.4 million and primarily consisted of leasehold

improvements to our New York showroom warehouse equipment for our leased distribution facility in Texas and

purchases of software and computer equipment

During fiscal 2008 investing activities used $13.4 million in cash Purchases of short-term investments

comprised $11.9 million of this amount Capital expenditures primarily involving heating and air conditioning units for

the corporate offices and purchased software of $1.6 million were made during fiscal 2008 offset by $100 thousand in

proceeds from the disposal of Fargeot and other equipment disposals

Financing activities

During fiscal 2010 financing activities provided $74 thousand in cash This financing cash inflow was primarily

due to $1.3 million in gross excess tax benefits realized on the exercise of stock options and vesting of restricted stock

units granted to certain employees of the Company and directors of R.G Bany Corporation and $468 thousand provided

from the exercise of employee stock options and was offset in part by the $1.6 million payment of cash dividends

During fiscal 2009 financing activities consumed $2.7 million in cash This financing cash outflow was

primarily due to the payment of special cash dividend of $0.25 per common share which amounted to approximately

$2.7 million as part of Company dividend program implemented in late fiscal 2009 In addition approximately $500

thousand of debt was paid in fiscal 2009 with an offsetting inflow of approximately $500 thousand provided from the

exercise of employee stock options and gross excess state and local tax benefits associated with vesting of restricted stock

units and stock option exercises during the period

During fiscal 2008 financing activities provided $685 thousand in cash This financing cash inflow resulted

primarily from $764 thousand in cash provided from the exercise of employee stock options and realized
gross excess

state and local tax benefits associated with stock option exercises and restricted stock unit vesting This amount was

partially offset by the payment of approximately $79 thousand associated with our debt

2011 Liquidity

We believe our sources of cash and cash equivalents on hand short-term investments and funds available under

our Bank Facility will be adequate to fund our operations and capital expenditures through fiscal 2011

Bank Facility

Our Company is party to an unsecured revolving credit facility with The Huntington National Bank Huntington
The original facility dated March 29 2007 was modified effective June 26 2009 Under this modified facility Bank
Facility Huntington is obligated to advance us funds for period of two and half years ending on December 31 2011

subject to one-year renewal option thereafter up to the following amounts
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July to December January to June

Fiscal 2011 $10 million $5 million

Fiscal 2012 million

The terms of the Bank Facility require the Company to satisfy certain financial covenants including satisfying

minimum fixed charge coverage ratio of not less than 1.25 to 1.0 which is calculated on trailing 12 months basis and

maintaining consolidated tangible net worth of not less than $44 million increased annually by 50% of the Companys

consolidated net income after June 28 2009 The Bank Facility must be rested for 30 consecutive days beginning in

February of each year Also the borrowing under the Bank Facility may not exceed 80% of the Companys eligible

accounts receivable and 50% of its eligible inventory at any one time As of July 2010 the Company was in

compliance with these financial covenants

The Bank Facility provides that Huntington will issue on behalf of the Company letters of credit with maximum

aggregate value of up to $1.5 million The aggregate dollar amount of outstanding letters of credit is deducted from the

available balance under the Bank Facility At July 2010 we had $9.2 million available under the Bank Facility which

was reduced by the aggregate amount of $800 thousand in letters of credit outstanding

The interest rate on the Bank Facility is variable rate equal to LIBOR plus 2.75 percent The applicable interest

rate on the Bank Facility assuming 30-day LIBOR rate of .35 percent at July 2010 was 3.10 percent Additionally the

modified Bank Facility requires the Company to pay quarterly unused line fee at the rate of 3/8 percent of the average

unused Bank Facility balance During fiscal 2010 the Company did not use its Bank Facility and incurred unused line

fees of approximately $27 thousand We incurred commitment fee of approximately $43 thousand when the

modification occurred effective as of June 26 2009 This fee is being amortized over the remaining term of the Bank

Facility

Other Short-term Debt

During fiscal 2009 we paid $450 thousand of $2.2 million we previously borrowed against the cash surrender

value of life insurance policies insuring our non-executive chairman Approximately $1.8 million of this indebtedness

was classified within short-term notes payable in our Consolidated Balance Sheets at July 2010 and June 27 2009

respectively

Other Long-term Indebtedness and Current Installments of Long-term Debt

As of July 2010 we reported approximately $97 thousand as current installments of long-term debt which

represented the remainder of our obligation associated with the agreement entered into with the mother of our chairman as

disclosed in Note of the Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements included in Item Financial Statements

and Supplementary Data in this 2010 Form 10-K

Other Matters Impacting Liquidity and Capital Resources

Contractual Oblijiations

We have traditionally leased facilities under operating lease transactions for varying term lengths ranging

generally from two years to seven years often with options for renewal On occasion we have also leased certain

equipment utilizing operating leases These leasing arrangements have allowed us to pay for the facilities and equipment

over the time periods they are utilized rather than committing our resources initially to acquire the facilities or equipment

All leases have been accounted for as operating leases consistent with the provisions of U.S Generally Accepted

Accounting Standards U.S GAAP Our future off-balance sheet non-cancelable operating lease obligations are

discussed in Note of the Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements included in Item Financial Statements and

Supplementary Data in this 2010 Form 10-K
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The following table summarizes our contractual obligations for both short-term and long-term obligations as of

July 2010

Payments due by period

More

Less than than

Total year years Years years Other

in thousands of dollars

Short-Term Debt 1750 1750 None None None None

Long-Term Debt Current and Non
Current Portions 97 97 None None None None

Other Long-Term Liabilities

reflected on the Consolidated

BalanceSheetoftheCompany $18461 18461

OTHER CONTRACTUAL
OBLIGATIONS

Operating Leases see also Note

of the Notes to Consolidated

Financial Statements 1140 353 604 183 None None

Minimum payments under third-

party logistics distribution services

contract 2262 1362 900 None None None

Minimum royalty and advertising

fund payments under product 800 800 None None None None

licensing programs

Purchase obligations in the ordinary

course of business 33825 33825 None None None None

OFF-BALANCE SHEET

ARRANGEMENTS

None

Interest has been excluded from the amount shown under Long-Term Debt Current and Non-Current Portions above

uc iuicii aiiiuuii wcjc ucciiicu IuhLnaIc1ia1

Other Long-Term Liabilities reflected on the Consolidated Balance Sheet of the Company as of July 2010

represented accrued cumulative future obligations under our Associates Retirement Plan of approximately $11150

accrued cumulative future obligations under our Supplemental Retirement Plan of approximately $6975 and various

other accruals of approximately $336 thousand The timing of future cash outflows related to most of these obligations is

not readily determinable as it is primarily dependent upon the annual actuarially-determined qualified pension plan

contributions as well as the timing of future associate retirements

Due to the many provisions under which the various licensing agreements can be terminated minimum royalty

payments are deemed contractual obligations of less than one year
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We acquire inventory and merchandise in the ordinary course of business issuing both purchase orders and to

lesser extent letters of credit to acquire merchandise from our suppliers Commitments in the ordinary course of business

outstanding as of July 2010 are included above There were no material outstanding commitments other than those

represented as part of our ordinary course of business

Other Matters Relevant to Financial Condition and Results of Operations

Licensing Agreement for European Distribution

In fiscal 2008 we terminated the licensing agreement for the sale marketing and sourcing of our slipper product

brands in Europe with subsidiary of British comfort footwear and apparel firm The annual royalty fees resulting from

this agreement were not significant to the overall operations of our business We reported $50 thousand for fiscal 2008 as

royalty payments received from the licensee under this licensing agreement

Critical Accounting Policies and Use of Significant Estimates

The preparation of financial statements in accordance with U.S GAAP requires that we make certain estimates

These estimates can affect reported revenues expenses and results of operations as well as the reported values of certain

assets and liabilities We make these estimates based on information from as many resources both internal and external

as are available at the time After reasonably assessing the conditions that exist at the time we make these estimates and

prepare consolidated financial statements accordingly These estimates are made in consistent manner from period to

period based upon historical trends and conditions and after review and analysis of current events and circumstances We

believe these estimates reasonably reflect the current assessment of the financial impact of events whose actual outcomes

will not become known to us with certainty until sometime in the future

The following discussion of critical accounting policies is intended to bring to the attention of readers those

accounting policies that management believes are critical to the Companys consolidated financial statements and other

financial disclosures It is not intended to be comprehensive list of all of our significant accounting policies that are

more fully described in Notes through of the Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements in this 2010 Form

10-K

summary of the critical accounting policies requiring management estimates follows

We recognize revenue when the following criteria are met

goods are shipped from our warehouse and other third-party distribution locations at which point

our customers take ownership and assume risk of loss

collection of the relevant receivable is probable

persuasive evidence of an arrangement exists and

the sales price is fixed or determinable

In certain circumstances we sell products to customers under special arrangements which provide for return

privileges discounts promotions and other sales incentives When selling under these special arrangements at the time

we recognize revenue we reduce our measurement of revenue by an estimate of the potential future returns and allowable

retailer promotions and sales incentives and recognize corresponding reduction in reported trade accounts receivable

These estimates have traditionally been and continue to be sensitive to and dependent on variety of factors including

but not limited to quantities sold to our customers and the related selling and marketing support programs channels of

distribution sell-through rates at retail the acceptance of the styling of our products by consumers the overall economic

environment consumer confidence leading towards and through the holiday selling season and other related factors

Allowances for returns promotions cooperative advertising and other sales incentives were not material to our

overall financial position as reported at the end of either fiscal 2010 or fiscal 2009 The estimates established for these

allowances at the end of these reporting periods reflected our current practice of collaborating closely with key retailing

partners to offer the appropriate in-season consumer promotions and sales incentives to achieve mutually satisfactory sell
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through rates thus reducing or eliminating returns As of July 2010 our allowance for returns was approximately $1.4

million hypothetical change of 10 percent in our returns allowance would have an impact on income before income

taxes of approximately $140 thousand As of July 2010 our allowance for promotions cooperative advertising and

other sales incentives was $1.8 million hypothetical change of 10 percent in this allowance would have an impact on

income before income taxes of $180 thousand

Due to the continuing seasonal nature of our business and the current economic climate it is possible that

allowances for returns promotions and other sales incentives and the related charges reported in our consolidated results

of operations could be different than those estimates noted above

We monitor the creditworthiness of our customers and the related collection of monies owed to us In

circumstances where we become aware of specific customers inability to meet its financial obligations specific

reserve for doubtful accounts is taken as reduction to accounts receivable to reduce the net recognized receivable to the

amount reasonably expected to be collected For all other customers we recognize estimated reserves for bad debts based

on our historical collection experience the financial condition of our customers an evaluation of current economic

conditions and anticipated trends each of which is subjective and requires certain assumptions At the end of fiscal 2010

and fiscal 2009 our allowance for doubtful accounts was $228 thousand and $427 thousand respectively

We value inventories using the lower of cost or market based upon the first-in first-out FIFO costing

method We evaluate our inventories for any reduction in realizable value in light of the prior selling season the overall

economic environment and our expectations for the upcoming selling seasons and we record the appropriate write-downs

based on this evaluation At the end of fiscal 2010 and the end of fiscal 2009 we estimated the FIFO cost of portion of

our inventory exceeded the estimated net realizable value of that inventory by $336 thousand and $220 thousand

respectively The increase from fiscal 2009 to fiscal 2010 reflected our on-going initiatives to properly manage our

inventory investment particularly with the newer Terrasoles and Superga brands

We make an assessment of the amount of income taxes that will become currently payable or recoverable

for the just concluded period and the deferred tax costs or benefits that will become realizable for income tax purposes in

the future as consequence of differences between results of operations as reported in conformity with U.S GAAP and

the requirements of the income tax codes existing in the various jurisdictions where we operate In evaluating the future

benefits of deferred tax assets we examine our projections of future profits

As result of the Companys disposal of its ownership of Fargeot in July 2007 the Company incurred

capital loss and it was able to utilize part of this loss to offset prior year capital gains The portion of the capital loss

which could not be utilized in fiscal 2010 or fiscal 2009 or fiscal 2008 is included as capital loss carryforward This

capital loss deferred tax asset is subject to expiration after five years as carryforward item with any realization

permitted only by offsetting against future capital gains generated by the Company Approximately $482 thousand of this

capital loss remains without any immediate offsetting capital gain expected at July 2010 Accordingly all of the $482

thousand has been reserved through valuation allowance established at the end of fiscal 2010

In addition we make ongoing assessments of income tax exposures that may arise at the federal state or local tax

levels As result of these evaluations any exposure deemed more likely than not will be quantified and accrued as tax

expense during the period and reported in tax contingency reserve Any identified exposures will be subjected to

continuing assessment and estimates will be revised accordingly as information becomes available to us

We had no tax contingency reserve at the end of fiscal 2010 or fiscal 2009 since there were no significant

outstanding exposures at the federal state or local tax levels as determined by management

We make estimates of the future costs associated with restructuring plans related to operational changes

announced during the year These estimates are based upon the anticipated costs of employee separations an analysis of

the impairment in the value of any affected assets anticipated future costs to be incurred in settling remaining lease

obligations net of any anticipated sublease revenues and other costs associated with the restructuring plans While we
believe restructuring activities and all related costs incurred in fully implementing the Companys current model have

been completely achieved by the Company changes in business conditions going forward may necessitate future

restructuring costs
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We sponsor noncontributory retirement plan for the benefit of salaried and nonsalaried employees the

Associates Retirement Plan ARP Effective as of close of business on March 31 2004 the ARP was frozen and has

remained frozen since that time We also sponsor Supplemental Retirement Plan SRP for certain officers and other

key employees as designated by our Board of Directors The SRP is unfunded noncontributory and provides for the

payment of monthly retirement benefits Effective as of close of business on March 31 2004 the SRP was frozen

The actuarial valuation of our ARP and SRP benefit costs assets and obligations affects our financial position

results of operations and cash flow These valuations require the use of assumptions and long-range estimates These

assumptions include among others assumptions regarding interest and discount rates and assumed long-term rates of

return on pension plan assets We regularly evaluate these assumptions and estimates as new information becomes

available Changes in assumptions which may be caused by conditions in the debt and equity markets changes in asset

mix and plan experience could have material effect on our pension obligations and expenses and can affect our net

income assets and shareholders equity In addition changes in assumptions such as rates of return fixed income rates

used to value liabilities or declines in the fair value of plan assets may result in voluntary decisions or mandatory

requirements to make additional contributions to our ARP

The discount rate was determined based on an analysis of interest rates for high-quality long-term corporate debt

at each measurement date In order to appropriately match the bond maturities with expected future cash payments we

utilize differing bond portfolios to estimate the discount rates for the defined benefit plans The weighted average

discount rate used to determine the defined benefit plans obligation as of the balance sheet date is the rate in effect at the

measurement date The same rate is also used to determine the defined benefit plans expense for the following fiscal

year The long-term rate of return for the defined benefit plans assets is based on our historical experience the defined

benefit plans investment guidelines and our expectations for long-term rates of return The defined benefit plans

investment guidelines are established based upon an evaluation of market conditions tolerance for risk and cash

requirements for benefit payments Holding all other assumptions constant we estimate that 100 basis point decrease in

the expected discount rate would decrease our fiscal 2010 pretax earnings by approximately $190 thousand and it would

increase our total pension liability by approximately $4.2 million

We establish assumptions to measure our pension liabilities and project the long-term rate of return expected on

the invested pension assets in our qualified ARP Changes in assumptions which may be caused by conditions in the debt

and equity markets changes in asset mix and plan experience could have material effect on our pension obligations and

expenses and can affect our net income assets and shareholders equity Changes in assumptions may also result in

voluntary or mandatory requirements to make additional contributions to our qualified ARIP These assumptions are

reviewed and reset as appropriate at the pension measurement date commensurate with the end of our fiscal year end and

we monitor these assumptions over the course of the fiscal year

Expected rate of return on ARP assets is also an important element of plan expense In fiscal 2010 we used

8.25 percent as the rate of return on ARP assets To determine the rate of return on plan assets we consider the historical

experience and expected future performance of the plan assets as well as the current and expected allocation of the plan

assets Our ARPs asset allocation as of July 2010 the measurement date for fiscal 2010 was approximately 64

percent in domestic and foreign equity investments 20 percent in domestic fixed income securities 11 percent in hedge

fund investments and percent in cash investments This asset allocation was in line with our investment policy

guidelines We periodically evaluate the allocation of plan assets among the different investment classes to ensure that

they are within policy guidelines Holding all other assumptions constant we estimate that 100 basis point decrease in

the expected rate of return on ARP assets would lower our fiscal 2010 pre-tax earnings by approximately $246 thousand

FASB ASC 718 the Stock Compensation topic requires the recognition of the fair value of stock-based

compensation in the results of operations The Company recognizes stock-based compensation expense over the requisite

service period of the individual grantees which generally equals the vesting period When restricted stock units are

granted the fair value of the grant is determined based on the market value of the underlying common shares at the date of

grant and is adjusted for anticipated forfeitures based on our historical experience and management judgment In fiscal

2010 fiscal 2009 and fiscal 2008 all equity-based grants made by the Company were in the form of restricted stock units

There are various other accounting policies that also require managements judgment We follow these

policies consistently from year to year and period to period For an additional discussion of all of our significant

accounting policies please see Notes through of the Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
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Actual results may vary from these estimates as consequence of activities after the period-end estimates have

been made These subsequent activities will have either positive or negative impact upon the results of operations in

period subsequent to the period when we originally made the estimate

Recently Issued Accounting Standards

See Note of the Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements included in Item Financial Statements and

Supplementary Data in this 2010 Form 10-K for disclosure that at July 2010 there were no recently issued

accounting standards that would have significant effect on the Company when they would be implemented

Item 7A Quantitative and Qualitative Disclosures About Market Risk

Interest Rates

Our principal market risk exposure relates to the impact of changes in short-term interest rates that may result

from the floating rate nature of the Companys Bank Facility At July 2010 we had no borrowings outstanding under

the Bank Facility Based on our projected funding needs for operations during fiscal 2011 we do not expect any

significant borrowings under our Bank Facility We typically do not hedge our exposure to floating interest rates

Interest rate changes impact the level of earnings for short-term investment Changes in long-term interest rates

also affect the measurement of pension liabilities performed on an annual basis

Market Risk Sensitive Instruments Foreign Currency

Substantially all of our sales were conducted in North America and denominated in U.S Dollars during fiscal

2010 At the end of each of fiscal 2010 fiscal 2009 and fiscal 2008 the Company did not have any such foreign

exchange contracts outstanding
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Item Financial Statements and Supplementary Data

Report of Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm

The Board of Directors and Shareholders

R.G Bany Corporation

We have audited the accompanying consolidated balance sheets of R.G Barry Corporation and subsidiaries as of July

2010 and June 27 2009 and the related consolidated statements of income shareholders equity and comprehensive

income and cash flows for the years ended July 2010 June 27 2009 and June 28 2008 These consolidated financial

statements are the responsibility of the Companys management Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these

consolidated financial statements based on our audits

We conducted our audits in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board United

States Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the

financial statements are free of material misstatement An audit includes examining on test basis evidence supporting

the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements An audit also includes assessing the accounting principles used

and significant estimates made by management as well as evaluating the overall financial statement presentation We

believe that our audits provide reasonable basis for our opinion

In our opinion the consolidated financial statements referred to above present fairly in all material respects the financial

position of R.G Barry Corporation and subsidiaries as of July 2010 and June 27 2009 and the results of their

operations and their cash flows for the years ended July 2010 June 27 2009 and June 28 2008 in conformity with

U.S generally accepted accounting principles

We also have audited in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Oversight Board United States R.G

Barry Corporations internal control over financial reporting as of July 2010 based on the criteria established in

Internal Control-Integrated Framework issued by the Committee of Sponsoring Organizations of the Treadway

Commission COSO and our report dated September 2010 expressed an unqualified opinion on the effectiveness of

the Companys internal control over financial reporting

Is KPMG LLP

Columbus Ohio

September 2010
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R.G BARRY CORPORATION AND SUBSIDIARIES

Consolidated Balance Sheets

in thousands

ASSETS July 2010 June 27 2009

Current assets

Cash and cash equivalents 16988 $14259
Short-term investments 27954 24977
Accounts receivable

Trade less allowance of $3446 and $2725 respectively 7440 9243
Other 862 260

Inventory 13486 8499
Deferred tax assets-current 1676 2621

Prepaid expenses 999 723

Total current assets 69405 60582

Property plant and equipment at cost 11669 11254

Less accumulated depreciation and amortization 7544 7511

Net property plant and equipment 4125 3743

Deferred tax assets-noncurrent 6936 7685
Other assets 2.903 3.073

Total assets 83.369 75.083

LIABILITIES AND SHAREHOLDERS EQUITY

Current liabilities

Short-term notes payable 1750 1750

Current installments of long-term debt 97 90

Accounts payable 3598 3887
Accrued expenses 4.867 3.979

Total current liabilities 10.312 9.706

Long-term debt excluding current installments 97

Accrued retirement costs and other 18461 19372

Total liabilities 28773 29175

Commitments and contingencies note 17

Shareholders equity

Preferred shares $1 par value per share Authorized 3775 Class

shares 225 Series II Junior Participating Class shares and 1000

Class shares none issued

Common shares $1 par value per share Authorized 22500 shares

issued and outstanding 10930 and 10722 shares respectively

excluding treasury shares of 1025 and 1008 respectively 10930 10722

Additional capital in excess of par value 19195 16940

Accumulated other comprehensive loss 12594 11049
Retained earnings 37.065 29295

Total shareholders equity 54596 45.908

Total liabilities and shareholders equity 83.369 75.083

See accompanying notes to consolidated financial statements
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R.G BARRY CORPORATION AND SUBSIDIARIES

Consolidated Statements of Income

Fiscal Years Ended July 2010 June 27 2009 and June 28 2008

in thousands except per common share data

2010 2009 2008

Net sales $123787 $113817 $109499
Cost of sales 72428 70350 64.520

Gross profit 51359 43467 44979

Selling general and administrative
expenses 36623 32971 32126

Gain on insurance recovery 1362
Operating profit 14736 10496 14215

Interest income 341 779 708

Interest expense 94 109 123
Other income ________ 15 50

Income before income tax 14983 11181 14850

Income tax expense 5583 4189 5065

Net earnings 9.400 6992 9.785

Net earnings per common share

Basic 0.86 0.66 0.93

Diluted 0.85 0.65 0.92

Weighted average number of common shares outstanding

Basic 10.893 10633 10.469

Diluted 11036 10.737 10.691

See accompanying notes to consolidated financial statements
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R.G BARRY CORPORATION

Consolidated Statements ofShareholders Equity and Comprehensive Income

Fiscal Years Ended July 2010 June 27 2009 and June 28 2008

in thousands

Additional Accumulated

capital in other Net

Common excess of par comprehensive Retained shareholders

shares value earnings equity

Balance at June 30 2007 10352 14546 3968 15285 36215

Comprehensive income

Net earnings 9785 9785
Other comprehensive loss

Foreign currency translation adjustment 365 365
Pension liability adjustment net of tax 1019 1.019

Total comprehensive income 8.401

Stock-based compensation expense 698 698

Stock-based compensation tax benefit 70 70

realized

Restricted stock units vested and stock options

exercised 196 449 645

Balance atJune 28 2008 $10548 $15763 $5352 $25070 $46029

Comprehensive income

Net earnings 6992 6992
Other comprehensive loss

Pension liability adjustment net of tax 5742 5.742

Total comprehensive income 1.250

Incremental effect of applying the measurement

date change on the employee retirement plan 45 86 41
net of tax

Stock-based compensation expense 938 938

Stock-based compensation tax benefit realized

Restricted stock units vested and stock options

exercised 174 244 418

Dividend declared at $0.25 per common share 2.68 2.681

Balance at June 27 2009 $10722 $16940 11049 29295 45908

Comprehensive income

Net earnings 9400 9400
Other comprehensive loss

Pension liability adjustment net of tax 1545 1545

Total comprehensive income 7855

Stock-based compensation expense 840 840

Stock-based compensation tax benefit realized 1285 1285

Restricted stock units vested and stock options

exercised 208 130 338

Dividends declared at $0.15 per common share 1630 1.630

Balance atJuly 2010 $10930 19.195 S12594 $37065 $54596

See accompanying notes to consolidated financial statements
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R.G BARRY CORPORATION

Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows

Fiscal Years Ended July 2010 June 27 2009 and June 28 2008

in thousands

2010 2009 2008

Operating activities

Net earnings 9400 6992 9785

Adjustments to reconcile net earnings to net cash provided by

operating activities

Depreciation and amortization 867 775 641

Loss on disposal of property plant and equipment net 47 19

Deferred income tax expense 3967 3490 4672

Gross excess tax benefit expense from exercise of stock options

and vesting of restricted stock units 1327 70
Stock-based compensation expense

840 938 698

Changes in

Accounts receivable 1201 3150 5783
Inventory 4986 2342 3797

Prepaid expenses
and other assets 107 968 632

Accounts payable 289 282 3279
Accrued expenses

602 609 158
Accrued retirement cost net 3260 1520 1198
Other liabilities 142 212 195

Net cash provided by operating activities 6.813 17255 8.686

Investing activities

Purchase of short-term investments net 2977 13107 11870
Purchases of property plant and equipment 1181 1365 1571
Proceeds from sale of subsidiary and other net ________

73

Net cash used in investing activities 4158 14472 13368

Financing activities

Repayment of short-term and long-term debt 91 534 79
Gross excess tax benefit expense from exercise of stock options

and vesting of restricted stock units 1327 70

Proceeds from common shares issued 468 486 694

Dividends paid 1.630 2681 ________

Net cash provided by used in financing activities 74 2.734 685

Net increase decrease in cash and cash

equivalents 2729 49 3997

Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the year 14.259 14.2 10 18207

Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the
year

16.988 14259 14.210

Supplemental cash flow disclosures

Interest paid
96 119 23

Income taxes paid net of taxes refunded 2464 636 353

See accompanying notes to consolidated financial statements

36



Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

Barry Corporation and Subsidiaries

dollar amounts in thousands except share and per common share data

Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

Principal Business Activity

R.G Barry Corporation an Ohio corporation is engaged with its subsidiaries for the

applicable periods in designing sourcing marketing and distributing accessory footwear

products The Company defines accessory footwear as product category that includes

primarily slippers sandals hybrid and active fashion footwear slipper socks and hosiery Its

products are sold in North America primarily through department stores chain stores

warehouse clubs discount stores and mass merchandising channels of distribution Unless

the context otherwise requires references in these notes to consolidated financial statements

to the Company refer to R.G Barry Corporation and its consolidated subsidiaries when

applicable

The Companys reporting period is fifty-two or fifty-three-week period fiscal year
ending annually on the Saturday nearest June 30 For definitional purposes as used herein

the terms listed below include the respective periods noted

Fiscal 2011 52 weeks ending July 2011

Fiscal 2010 53 weeks ended July 2010

Fiscal 2009 52 weeks ended June 27 2009

Fiscal 2008 52 weeks ended June 28 2008

Princzples of Consolidation

The financial statements include the accounts of the Company All inter-company balances

and transactions where appropriate have been eliminated in consolidation

Use of Estimates

The Companys financial statements have been prepared in conformity with U.S generally

accepted accounting principles GAAP and accordingly require management to make

estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities and

disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the financial statements and the

reported amounts of revenues and expenses during the reporting periods Actual results could

differ from those estimates

Cash and Cash Equivalents

Cash includes deposits with banks and other financial institutions which are accessible at any

time without prior notice or penalty Cash equivalents include investments with maturities of

three months or less

Short-Term Investments

At July 2010 as part of its cash management and investment program the Company
maintained portfolio of $27954 in short-term investments including $21769 in marketable

investment securities consisting of variable rate demand notes and $6185 in other short-term

investments The marketable investment securities are classified as available-for-sale These

marketable investment securities are carried at cost which approximates fair value The

other short-term investments are classified as held-to-maturity securities and include several

corporate bonds which have individual maturity dates ranging from July 2010 to January
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

Barry Corporation and Subsidiaries

dollar amounts in thousands except share and per common share data

2011 Held-to-maturity debt securities are those debt securities as to which the Company has

the ability and intent is to hold until maturity Held-to-maturity debt securities are recorded at

amortized cost adjusted for the amortization or accretion of premiums or discounts

Inventoly

Inventory is valued at the lower of cost or market as determined on the first-in first-out

FIFO basis see Note

Depreciation and Amortization

Depreciation and amortization expense has been computed using the straight-line method

over the estimated useful lives of the assets Depreciation and amortization expense is

reflected as part of selling general and administrative expenses in the accompanying

consolidated statements of income

Ii Trademarks Patents and Licensing Agreements

The Company incurs costs in obtaining and perfecting trademarks and patents related to its

products and production-related processes These costs are generally amortized over period

subsequent to asset acquisition not to exceed five years Licensing fees paid to acquire rights

to any trademark are amortized over the base term of the related licensing agreement

Revenue Recognition and Trade Accounts Receivable

The Company recognizes revenue when the following criteria are met

goods are shipped from its warehouse and other third-party distribution locations at

which point the Companys customers take ownership and assume risk of loss

collection of the relevant receivable is probable

persuasive evidence of an arrangement exists and

the sales price is fixed or determinable

Trade accounts receivable are recorded at the invoiced amount and do not bear interest In

certain circumstances the Company sells to its customers under special arrangements which

in certain instances provide for return privileges as well as discounts promotions and other

sales incentives When selling under these special arrangements the Company reduces its

measurement of revenue by the estimated cost of potential future returns and allowable

retailer promotions and sales incentives The Company bases its estimates for sales returns

and promotions and sales incentive allowances on current and historical trends and

experience

Allowances established for returns were approximately $1431 and $1075 at the end of fiscal

2010 and fiscal 2009 respectively these allowances at the end of each fiscal year were for

specific spring season programs initiated with certain customers in each respective fiscal

year During fiscal 2010 and fiscal 2009 the Company recorded approximately $2884 and

$1418 respectively as the sales value of merchandise returned by customers
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

Barry Corporation and Subsidiaries

dollar amounts in thousands except
share and per common share data

Allowances for promotions cooperative advertising and other sales incentives established at

the end of fiscal 2010 and fiscal 2009 were approximately $1787 and $1223 respectively

Charges to earnings for consumer promotion cooperative advertising and other sales

incentive activities including support for display fixtures for fiscal 2010 fiscal 2009 and

fiscal 2008 were approximately $11467 $10592 and $11300 respectively

Distribution and Warehousing Costs

Distribution and warehousing costs for finished product including occupancy costs are

classified within selling general and administrative expenses in the accompanying
consolidated statements of income These costs amounted to $6123 $6089 and $6170 for

fiscal 2010 fiscal 2009 and fiscal 2008 respectively

Advertising and Promotion

The Company uses variety of programs to advertise and promote the sale of its products to

customers and consumers Customer advertising is expensed as incurred The cost of

consumer advertising is expensed when first used For fiscal 2010 fiscal 2009 and fiscal

2008 advertising and promotion expenses of $3285 $1798 and $2707 respectively have

been reported in selling general and administrative expenses in the accompanying
consolidated statements of income

Income Taxes

Income taxes are accounted for under the asset and liability method Deferred tax assets and

liabilities are recognized for the future tax consequences attributable to differences between

the financial statement carrying amounts of existing assets and liabilities and their respective

tax bases and operating loss and tax credit carryforwards Deferred tax assets and liabilities

are measured using enacted tax rates expected to apply to taxable income in the
years

in

which those temporary differences are expected to be recovered or settled The effect on

deferred tax assets and liabilities of change in tax rates is recognized in income in the period

that includes the enactment date

In assessing the realizability of deferred tax assets the Companys management considers

whether it is more likely than not that some portion or all of the deferred tax assets will not be

realized The ultimate realization of deferred tax assets is dependent on the generation of

future taxable income Management considers the scheduled reversal of deferred items

projected future taxable income and tax planning strategies in making this assessment

Per Common Share Information

Basic net earnings per common share is based on the weighted average number of common
shares outstanding during each reporting period Diluted net earnings per common share are

based on the weighted average number of common shares outstanding as well as when their

effect is dilutive potential common shares consisting of certain common shares subject to

stock options and restricted stock units

Comprehensive Income

Comprehensive income consisting of net earnings foreign currency translation adjustments

and pension liability adjustments is presented in the accompanying consolidated statements

of shareholders equity and comprehensive income
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

Barry Corporation and Subsidiaries

dollar amounts in thousands except share and per common share data

Shareholders Equity

The Company adopted the provisions of Financial Accounting Standards Board Accounting

Standard Codification FASB ASC 718 the Stock Compensation topic effective January

2006 FASB ASC 718 requires the recognition of the fair value of stock-based compensation

in the results of operations The Company recognizes the stock-based compensation expense

over the requisite service period of the individual grantees which generally equals the vesting

period All of the stock-based compensation is accounted for as an equity instrument Stock-

based compensation expense for awards granted after adopting the provisions of FASB ASC
718 is recognized over the requisite service period for the entire award for attribution

purposes the award is treated as though it were subject to cliff vesting This recognition

under FASB ASC 718 is subject to the requirement that the cumulative amount of stock-

based compensation expense recognized at any point in time must at least equal to the portion

of the grant-date fair value of the award that is vested at that date

The Amended and Restated 2005 Long-Term Incentive Plan the 2005 Plan is the only

equity-based compensation plan under which future awards may be made to employees of the

Company and non-employee directors of R.G Barry Corporation other than the employee

stock purchase plan in which employees of the Company may participate as described in

further detail in Note 11 The Companys previous equity-based compensation plans

remained in effect with respect to the then outstanding awards following the approval of the

2005 Plan

During fiscal 2010fiscal 2009 and fiscal 2008 the Company recognized net excess federal

state and local tax benefit expense of $1285 $5 and $70 respectively associated with

stock-based compensation and recognized this excess benefit expense as an addition to

deduction from the paid-in capital account Excess tax benefits are recognized only when

they impact taxes paid or payable

Fair Value Measurements

FASB ASC 820-10 the overall Subtopic of topic 820 on fair value measurements and

disclosures provides guidance on fair value measurements of financial assets and financial

liabilities and for fair value measurements of nonfinancial items that are recognized or

disclosed at fair value in the financial statements on recurring basis This accounting

standard provides fair value hierarchy that prioritizes the inputs to valuation techniques

used to measure fair value The hierarchy gives the highest priority to unadjusted quoted

prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities Level measurements and the

lowest priority to measurements involving significant unobservable inputs Level

measurements The three levels of the fair value hierarchy are as follows

Level inputs are quoted prices unadjusted in active markets for identical

assets or liabilities that the Company has the ability to access at the measurement

date

Level inputs are inputs other than quoted prices included within Level that

are observable for the asset or liability either directly or indirectly

Level inputs are unobservable inputs for the asset or liability
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

Barry Corporation and Subsidiaries

dollar amounts in thousands except share and per common share data

The level in the fair value hierarchy within which fair value measurement falls is based on

the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement in its entirety

Impairment ofLong-Lived Assets and Long-Lived Assets to Be Disposed Of

In accordance with GAAP long-lived assets such as property plant and equipment and

purchased intangible assets subject to amortization are reviewed for impairment whenever

events or changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying amount of those assets may not

be recoverable Recoverability of assets held and used is measured by comparison of the

carrying amount of an asset group to the estimated undiscounted future cash flows expected

to be generated by the asset group If the carrying amount of an asset group exceeds its

estimated future cash flows an impairment charge is recognized equal to the amount by

which the carrying amount of the individual assets within the group exceeds its fair value

Assets to be disposed of would be presented separately in the consolidated balance sheets

reported at the lower of the carrying amount or fair value less costs to sell and are no longer

depreciated

Allowances Granted to Resellers

The Company provided consideration to customers in the form of discounts and other

allowances which were reflected as reduction of net sales of approximately $10188 $9340

and $9918 for fiscal 2010 fiscal 2009 and fiscal 2008 respectively

Interest and Penalties Associated with Income Tax

The Companys policy is to recognize and classify any interest and penalties associated with

tax authority assertion of the Companys income tax liabilities as part of the Companys
income tax expense

Recently Issued Accounting Standards

At July 2010 there were no recently issued accounting standards that would have

significant effect on the Company when they would be implemented
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Fair Value Measurements

Fair Value of Financial Instruments

Cash cash equivalents short-term investments accounts receivable accounts payable and accrued

expenses as reported in the consolidated financial statements approximate their fair value because

of the short-term maturity of those instruments The fair value of the Companys long-term debt is

disclosed in Note

The following table presents assets and liabilities that are measured at fair value on recurring

basis including items that are required to be measured at fair value and items for which the fair

value option has been elected at July 2010

Fair Value Measurements at Reportin2 Date Using

Quoted Prices

in Active Significant

Markets for Other Significant

Identical Observable Unobservable

July 2010 Assets Inputs Inputs

Level Level Level

Assets

Available-for-sale

securities 21769 21769 _________

Total 21769
_______________

21769 ________

The Company had no other nonfinancial assets or liabilities measured at fair value on non

recurring basis during fiscal 2010 or fiscal 2009

Inventory

Inventory by category at July 2010 and June 27 2009 consisted of the following

2010 2009

Raw materials 73 90

Finished goods 13413 8.409

Total Inventory 13.486 8499

Inventory is presented net of raw material write-downs of $7 and $4 at the end of fiscal 2010 and

fiscal 2009 respectively and finished goods write-downs of $329 and $216 at the end of the same

reporting periods respectively Inventory write-downs recognized as part of cost of sales were

$1617 $1069 and $430 in fiscal 2010 fiscal 2009 and fiscal 2008 respectively
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Property Plant and Equipment

Property plant and equipment at cost at July 2010 and June 27 2009 consisted of the following

Estimated

2010 2009 life inyears

Land and improvements 279 267 515

Buildings and improvements 3751 3534 545

Machinery and equipment 6454 6264 210
Leasehold improvements 1102 1146 26
Construction in progress 83 43

Total property plant and equipment 11669 $11254

Less total accumulated depreciation 7.544 7511

Net property plant and equipment 4125 3.743

Intangible Trademark Patent Assets and Licensing Fees

Intangible trademark patent assets and licensing fees included the following at July 2010 and

June 27 2009

2010 2009

Trademarks patents and licensing fees at cost $1039 1003

Less accumulated amortization 835 644
Trademarks patents and licensing fees net 204 359

The Company recognized trademark patent and licensing fee amortization expense of $191 $190

and $201 in fiscal 2010 fiscal 2009 and fiscal 2008 respectively and reported that expense as part

of selling general and administrative expenses in the accompanying consolidated statements of

income

Based on the Companys amortization methods remaining net trademark patent and licensing fee

costs will be recognized as amortization expense of $106 $40 $33 $17 and $8 in each of the next

five years respectively The Company would accelerate the expensing of these costs should

circumstances change and an impairment condition be determined for trademarks or patents that

have remaining value
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Short-term Notes Payable and Long-term Debt

The Company is party to an unsecured revolving credit facility with The Huntington National Bank

Huntington The original facility dated March 29 2007 was modified effective June 26 2009

Under this second modification of the Bank Facility Huntington is obligated to advance the

Company funds through December 31 2011 subject to one-year renewal option thereafter up to

the following amounts

July to December January to June

Fiscal 2011 $10000 $5000

Fiscal 2012 8000

The terms of the Bank Facility require the Company to satisfy certain financial covenants including

satisfying minimum fixed charge coverage ratio of not less than 1.25 to 1.0 which is calculated

on trailing 12 months basis and maintaining consolidated tangible net worth of not less than

$44 million increased annually by 50% of the Companys consolidated net income after June 28

2009 The Bank Facility must be rested for 30 consecutive days beginning in February of each

year Also the borrowing under the Bank Facility may not exceed 80% of the Companys eligible

accounts receivable plus 50% of its eligible inventory at any one time As of July 2010 the

Company was in compliance with these financial covenants

The Bank Facility provides that Huntington will issue on behalf of the Company letters of credit

with maximum aggregate value of up to $1500 As of July 2010 the aggregate dollar amount

of outstanding letters of credit of $800 has been deducted from the available balance under the

Bank Facility At July 2010 the Company had $9 200 available under the Bank Facility

The interest rate on the Bank Facility is variable rate equal to LIBOR plus 2.75% The applicable

interest rate on the Bank Facility at July 2010 was 3.10% assuming 30-day LIBOR rate of .35%

on that date Additionally the modified Bank Facility requires the Company to pay quarterly

unused line fee at the rate of 3/8% of the average unused Bank Facility balance During fiscal 2010

the Company did not use its Bank Facility and incurred unused line fees of approximately $27 The

Company incurred commitment fee of approximately $43 on the loan modification effective as of

June 26 2009 this fee is being amortized over the remaining term of the Bank Facility

At July 2010 and June 27 2009 short-term notes payable of $1750 and $1750 respectively

consisted exclusively of the borrowings against the cash surrender value of certain life insurance

policies with an interest rate of 3.25% as discussed further in Note 15

The Company and its co-founder the mother of the Companys non-executive chairman

chairman entered into an agreement in August 2005 whereby she transferred all of her product

designs and patent rights to the Company and released all unpaid claims that would have accrued

under previous agreement Under the August 2005 agreement the Company is obligated to make

24 quarterly payments of $25 each on the last business day of every October January April and

July until the last business day in April 2011 On March 24 2008 the remaining payment rights

under the agreement were assigned to fund established with philanthropic organization As of

July 2010 and listed as Other note in the table below the Company reported the entire

remaining $97 obligation under this agreement as current installments of long-term debt
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The fair value of the Companys long-term debt is based upon the present value of expected cash

flows considering expected maturities and using current interest rates available to the Company for

borrowings with similar terms The carrying amount of the Companys long-term debt

approximates its fair value Long-term debt at July 2010 and June 27 2009 consisted of the

following

2010 2009

Other note 97 $187

Less current installments 97 90

Long-term debt excluding current installments 97

Lease Commitments

The Company occupies certain distribution and office sales facilities under cancelable and

noncancelable operating lease arrangements summary of the noncancelable operating lease

commitments at July 2010 is as follows

2011 353

2012 204

2013 200

2014 200

2015 183

Thereafter

$1140

Substantially all of these operating lease agreements have no further contractual renewals and

require the Company to pay insurance taxes and maintenance expenses Rent expense under

cancelable and noncancelable operating lease arrangements in fiscal 2010 fiscal 2009 and fiscal

2008 reported as part of continuing operations was $1046 $1212 and $998 respectively

45



Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

Barry Corporation and Subsidiaries

dollar amounts in thousands except share and per common share data

Income Taxes

Income tax expense for fiscal 2010 fiscal 2009 and fiscal 2008 consisted of the following

2010 2009 2008

Current expense
Federal $2439 216 165

State 504 478 298

2943 694 463

Deferred expense 2640 3495 4602

Total expense 5583 4189 5065

The differences between income taxes computed by applying the statutory federal income tax rate

34 percent in fiscal 2010 fiscal 2009 and fiscal 2008 and income tax expense reported in the

consolidated financial statements is

2010 2009 2008

Computed expected tax expense 5094 3802 5049

State income taxes expense net of

federal income tax 437 400 535

Deferred tax benefit true-up

adjustment 522
Other net 52 13
Total expense 5583 4189 5065

The tax effects of temporary differences that give rise to significant portions of the deferred tax

assets and deferred tax liabilities are presented below for the end of fiscal 2010 and fiscal 2009

2010 2009

Deferred tax assets

Current assets 923 668

Accounting accruals including self-insurance costs

vacation costs and others 819 825

Accrued pension costs 159 1521

Pension liability adjustment 7139 6193

State net operating loss carryforward 10

U.S Federal tax loss and alternative minimum tax

credit carryforwards 1201

Capital loss carry forward 482 482

Total deferred tax assets 9204 10900

Less valuation allowance 482 482
Deferred tax assets net 8722 10418

Deferred tax liabilities

Prepaid insurance 66 83

Property plant and equipment 44 29

Total deferred tax liabilities 110 112

Net deferred tax assets 8612 10306
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The net temporary differences incurred to date will reverse in future periods as the Company

generates taxable earnings The deferred tax assets result primarily from provisions in the U.S

income tax code which require that certain accounting accruals be deferred until future years

before those accruals are deductible for current income tax purposes The Company believes it is

more likely than not that the results of future operations will generate sufficient taxable income to

realize the deferred tax assets recorded The Company records valuation allowance when it is

more likely than not that some portion or all of the deferred tax assets will not be realized

In fiscal 2008 the Company recorded an out-of-period deferred tax benefit adjustment of $522

related to prior period asset dispositions associated primarily with the closure of the Companys
former distribution operations in Mexico This adjustment resulted in lower income tax expense

recognized in the results of operations reported in fiscal 2008

As result of the Companys disposal of its ownership of Fargeot in July 2007 the Company
incurred capital loss and it was able to utilize part of this loss to offset prior year capital gains

The portion of the capital loss which could not be utilized in fiscal 2008 is included as capital

loss carryforward This capital loss deferred tax asset is subject to expiration after five years as

carryforward item with any realization permitted only by offsetting against future capital gains

generated by the Company Approximately $482 of this capital loss remains without any

immediate offsetting capital gain expected at July 2010 Accordingly all of the $482 has been

reserved through valuation allowance established at the end of fiscal 2008

At the end of fiscal 2010 fiscal 2009 and fiscal 2008 there were approximately $0 $1757 and

$11163 of net operating loss carryforwards respectively available for U.S federal state and local

income tax purposes Due to the deferred recognition of additional paid in capital APIC created

from excess tax benefits realized on the exercises and/or vesting of various equity-based

compensation instruments the net operating loss carryforwards as measured in the Companys tax

returns are higher than those amounts considered for book purposes FASB ASC 718 requires

recognition of excess tax benefits as APIC only when cash payments on taxes are directly impacted

This timing for federal income tax return purposes will not occur until all net operating loss

canyforwards are completely used to offset U.S federal income tax expense Accordingly net

operating loss carryforwards as measured for U.S federal income tax return purposes as of the end

of fiscal 2010 fiscal 2009 and fiscal 2008 were $0 $4600 and $14030 respectively Loss

carryforwards in the U.S are generally available for up to twenty years
in the future All net

operating loss carryforwards were used during fiscal 2010 and we recognized both deferred prior

year and current year excess tax benefits as APIC during fiscal 2010

FASB ASC 740-10 the overall Subtopic of topic 740 on income taxes prescribes recognition

threshold and measurement attribute for the financial statement recognition and measurement of

tax position taken or expected to be taken in tax return and also provides guidance on

derecognition classification interest and penalties accounting in interim periods disclosure and

transition The Company did not record an accrual for tax related uncertainties or unrecognized tax

positions at the end of fiscal 2010 or the end of fiscal 2009 The Company does not expect charge

to the reserve for uncertain tax positions within the next twelve months that would have material

impact on the consolidated financial statements

The Company recorded no interest or penalties during fiscal 2010 in either its consolidated

statement of income or consolidated balance sheet

The Company files consolidated U.S Federal income tax return and consolidated and separate

company income tax returns in various federal state and local jurisdictions Generally the
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Company is no longer subject to income tax examinations by federal tax authorities through the tax

year ended June 28 2008 and by state and local tax authorities for the tax years through July

2006

Accrued Expenses

Accrued expenses at July 2010 and June 27 2009 consisted of the following

2010 2009

Salaries and wages $3320 1949

Income taxes 14 59

Other taxes 105 112

Current pension liabilities 675 1490

Other 753 369

4867 3979

10 Employee Retirement Plans

The Company maintains tax qualified pension plan the Associates Retirement Plan ARP.The
Company intends to fund the minimum amounts required under the Employee Retirement Income

Security Act of 1974 ERISA The Company also sponsors tax nonqualified pension plan the

Supplemental Retirement Plan SRP for certain officers and other key employees as designated

by R.G Bany Corporations Board of Directors The SRP is unfunded noncontributory and

provides for the payment of monthly retirement benefits Benefits are based on formula applied

to the recipients final average monthly compensation reduced by certain percentage of their

social security benefits For certain participants the SRP provides an alternative benefit formula

for years worked past the normal retirement age assumed by the SRP Effective as of close of

business on March 31 2004 both the ARP and SRP were frozen with the exception of two former

employees participating in the SRP who are no longer with the Company

The funded status of the ARP and the SRP and the accrued retirement costs measured on July

2010 and June 27 2009 respectively were

Change in projected benefit obligation

Benefit obligation at the beginning of the

year

Service cost

Interest cost

Plan amendments

Actuarial loss

Benefits paid

Liability gain due to settlement

Adjustment for change in measurement date
____________

Benefit obligation at the end of the year

ARP
2010 2009

SRP

2010 2009

1840 1895 445

45

525

19

29770 29433 8272 8200

3752 763 701 325

2224 2237 1418 816
359

84 26

33138 29770 7650 8272
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Change in plan assets

Fair value of plan assets at the beginning of

the year

Actual return on plan assets

Contributions

Expenses

Benefits paid

Adjustment for change in measurement date

Fair value of plan assets at end of the year

Funded status at year-end

Noncurrent assets

Current liabilities

Noncurrent liabilities

Net pension liability at end of year

Amounts recognized in accumulated other

comprehensive loss-pretax

Prior service costs

Net actuarial loss

Balance in accumulated other comprehensive

loss at end of year-pretax

Other changes in plan assets and benefit

obligations recognized in accumulated

comprehensive loss

ARP
2010 2009

17659 25052

2901 4886
3856 415

204 214
2224 2237

471

21988 17659

11151 12111

11151 12111

11151 12111

17354 14904

17354 14904

ARP
2010 2009

SRP

2010 2009

1418 816

1418 816

7650 8272

675 1490
6975 6782
7650 8272

55 206

1819 1628

1874 1834

SRP

2010 2009

Net actuarial loss

Prior service cost

Amortization of

Prior service costs

NTt wfiii lr

3028 9053 157 325

19

42 42
75 53

Total recognized in comprehensive income 2451 8794 40 249

The accumulated benefit obligation for the ARP was $33139 and $29770 as of July 2010 and

June 27 2009 respectively The accumulated benefit obligation for the SRP was $7650 and

$8206 as of July 2010 and June 27 2009 respectively

At July 2010 expected benefit payments to plan participants in the ARP and the SRP for each of

the next five
years

and the five-year period thereafter in the aggregate are
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ARP SRP

2011 2306 675

2012 2323 669

2013 2343 665

2014 2327 694

2015 2348 680

2016-2020 11696 3101

Weighted average assumptions

used to determine net costs for

both the ARP and the SRP 2010 2009 2008

Discount rate 6.42% 6.69% 6.00%

Rate of compensation increase 4.00% 4.00% 4.00%

Expected return on plan assets 8.25% 8.50% 8.50%

Components of Net Periodic

Benefit Cost

Service cost 45 45

Interest cost 2285 2420 2292

Expected return on plan assets 1973 2204 2157
Net amortization 693 285 426

Settlement expense 185

Total pension expense 1199 546 606

Weighted average assumptions

used to determine benefit

obligations

Discount rate 5.02% 6.42% 6.69%

Rate of compensation increase 4.00% 4.00%

The estimated net actuarial loss prior service cost and transition obligation asset for the defined

benefit plans that will be amortized from accumulated other comprehensive income into net

periodic benefit cost during fiscal 2011 are $1219 $42 and $0 respectively

The ARP is funded on periodic basis as required under ERISA/IRS guidelines The general

principles guiding investment of pension plan assets are those embodied under ERTSA These

principles include discharging the Companys investment responsibilities for the exclusive benefit

of plan participants and in accordance with the prudent expert standards and other ERISA rules

and regulations Investment objectives for the Companys pension plan assets are to optimize the

long-term return on plan assets while maintaining an acceptable level of risk diversif\j assets

among asset classes and investment styles and maintain long-term focus The plan asset

allocation shown below is consistent with the Companys investment policy objectives With the

assistance of consulting firm the plan fiduciaries are responsible for selecting investment

managers setting asset allocation targets and monitoring asset allocation and investment

performance
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The qualified plan assets invested as of the measurement date for fiscal 2010 fiscal 2009 and fiscal

2008 were as follows

2010 2009 2008

Cash and equivalents 5% 2% 2%

Domestic equities 42% 48% 48%

Domestic fixed income securities 20% 6% 9%

Foreign equities 22% 24% 25%

Hedge funds 11% 20% 16%

Total pension plan assets invested 100% 100% 100%

The table below highlights assets held in trust in the ARP and the fair value categories applicable

to the various investments held

Fair Value Measurements at Reportin2 Date Using

Quoted

Prices in

Active Significant

Markets for Other Significant

Identical Observable Unobservable

Assets Inputs Inputs

July 2010 Level Level Level

Assets

Cash and

equivalents 1116

Domestic equities 9199 9199

Domestic fixed

income securities 4364 4364

Foreign equities 4851 4851

Hedge funds 2458 1347 1111

Total pension plan

assets 21988 18414 1347 1111
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Our level hedge fund investment does not have quotes on an active market or exchange and this

investment is master hedge fund that invests in variety of underlying individual hedge funds that

are not quoted on an active market or exchange Net asset values are determined by this master

hedge fund on monthly basis by reference to net asset values computed and determined by the

individual hedge funds it invests in

Level pension

investment

reconciliation

Balance at June 27 2009 1771

Realized gain loss

Unrealized gain loss relating to

instrument still held at July 2010 91

Purchases sales and settlements net 751
Transfers in/out of category level

Balance atJuly 2010 1111

The expected return on plan assets used in the pension computations for the qualified ARP is based

on managements best judgment of future anticipated performance of those invested assets based on

past long-term experience and judgment on how future long-term performance will occur

The Companys SRP is unfunded and payments as required are made when due from the

Companys general funds In fiscal 2011 the Company anticipates total payments of $1830

related to its SRP and ARP

The discount rate was determined based on an analysis of interest rates for high-quality long-term

corporate debt at each measurement date In order to appropriately match the bond maturities with

expected future cash payments the Company utilizes differing bond portfolios to estimate the

discount rates for the defined benefit plans The weighted average discount rate used to determine

the defined benefit plans obligation as of the balance sheet date is the rate in effect at the

measurement date The same rate is also used to determine the defined benefit plans expense for

the following fiscal year

During fiscal 2010 the Company made lump sum payment of $748 to former executive upon
his retirement as full settlement of his SRP benefit Based on interest rates existing at the date of

settlement the Company recognized settlement loss of $185 in pension expense and an additional

other comprehensive loss adjustment net of tax of $99 based on re-measurement of remaining

SRP liabilities

The Company sponsors 401k plan for all its eligible salaried and nonsalaried employees other

than employees of its non-domestic subsidiaries Effective January 2005 the Company adopted

3% non-contributory Safe Harbor 401 provision for all eligible plan participants The Companys
contributions in cash to the 40 1k plan were $375 $278 and $256 for fiscal 2010 fiscal 2009 and

fiscal 2008 respectively

52



Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

Barry Corporation and Subsidiaries

dollar amounts in thousands except share and per common share data

11 Shareholders Equity

As of July 2010 there were approximately 127 employees and nine non-employee directors who

were eligible to participate in the 2005 Plan

The 2005 Plan authorizes the issuance of 1000000 common shares plus

the number of common shares that were authorized to be the subject of awards under the

1997 Incentive Stock Plan the 1997 Plan and the 2002 Stock Incentive Plan the 2002

Plan which plans were terminated as to new awards on May 20 2005 but as to which

awards had not been made as of May 20 2005 and

any common shares underlying awards granted under the 1997 Plan and the 2002 Plan which

are forfeited after May 20 2005

At July 2010 the number of common shares available for grant pursuant to the 2005 Plan was

594000 common shares including 94000 common shares available through the rollover terms of

the 2005 Plan in respect of common shares previously available under the 2002 Plan

The selection of participants and the nature and size of awards granted under the 2005 Plan is

within the discretion of the Compensation Committee of R.G Barry Corporations Board of

Directors the Committee in the case of grants to employees of the Company or the full Board

of Directors in the case of grants to non-employee directors of R.G Barry Corporation The 2005

Plan provides for the following types of awards each as defined in the 2005 Plan

nonqualified stock options NQs and incentive stock options ISOs that qualify under

Section 422 of the Internal Revenue Code of 1986 as amended

stock appreciation rights

restricted stock and restricted stock units RSUs and

stock grants stock units and cash awards

Grants of restricted stock RSUs stock units and cash awards may as determined by the Committee

or the full Board of Directors as appropriate also be performance-based awards as defined in the

2005 Plan

If an award granted under the 2005 Plan is forfeited cancelled terminated relinquished exchanged

or otherwise settled without the issuance of common shares or the payment of cash equal to the

difference between the fair market value of the award and any exercise price the common shares

associated with that award will be available for future grants The maximum number of common

shares with respect to which awards may be issued under the 2005 Plan to any individual during

any calendar year is 200000 The common shares issued pursuant to the 2005 Plan may consist of

authorized and unissued common shares or treasury shares

Prior to the 2005 Plan the Company had various equity-based compensation plans under which

ISOs and NQs had been granted some of which remain outstanding All outstanding ISOs and

NQs are currently exercisable for periods of up to ten years
from the date of grant at exercise prices

of not less than the fair market value of the underlying common shares at the grant date
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Plan activity for grants under the 2005 Plan and the other equity-based compensation plans under

which ISOs and NQs have been granted was as follows

Number of Number of Weighted-
common shares common shares average

subject to ISOs subject to NQs exercise price

Outstanding at June 30 2007 280100 435900 5.79

Granted

Exercised 54400 121900 3.84

Expired/Cancelled 13100 75800 13.09

Outstanding at June 28 2008 212600 238200 5.23

Granted

Exercised 94100 36200 3.74

Expired/Cancelled 1500 55800 8.38

Outstanding at June 27 2009 117000 146200 5.21

Granted

Exercised 81000 40700 4.03

Expired/Cancelled
_______________ _______________

Outstanding at July 2010 36000 105500 6.11

Options exercisable at July 2010 34000 105500

Options outstanding Options exercisable

Weighted-

average Weighted- Weighted-

Range of Number remaining average Number average

exercise outstanding at contractual exercise exercisable at exercise

prices July 2010 life years price July 2010 price

2.51 5.00 22200 2.29 4.19 22200 4.19

5.0110.00 119300 2.66 6.47 117300 6.46

141500 139500

The intrinsic values of the stock options exercisable and outstanding at the end of fiscal 2010 were

$726 and $734 respectively The intrinsic value of stock options exercised during fiscal 2010 was

$646

At the end of fiscal 2010 fiscal 2009 and fiscal 2008 the stock options outstanding under these

equity-based compensation plans were held by 21 and 38 employees respectively and had

expiration dates ranging from 2011 to 2016
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FASB ASC 718 the Stock Compensation topic requires the recognition of the fair value of stock-

based compensation in the results of operations The Company recorded as part of selling general

and administrative expenses $840 of stock-based compensation expense for fiscal 2010

Approximately $5 of the total stock-based compensation expense incurred during fiscal 2010 was

associated with stock-based awards granted prior to adopting the provisions of FASB ASC 718

$835 of the total stock-based compensation expense was related to ISOs NQs and RSUs granted

after the Company adopted FASB ASC 718

Total compensation cost of stock-based awards granted but not yet vested as of July 2010 was

approximately $1786 all of which related to the compensation cost for stock-based awards issued

after the adoption of FASB ASC 718 The Company expects to recognize the total remaining

compensation cost over the weighted-average period of approximately two years

During fiscal 2010 the Company granted RSUs to non-employee directors of R.G Barry

Corporation and to members of its senior and other management Upon vesting the RSUs will be

settled in an equivalent number of common shares The RSUs granted to the non-employee

directors will vest in full on December 31 2010 The RSUs awarded to the members of senior and

other management will vest in full on the fifth anniversary of the date of the award although twenty

percent of the RSUs may vest on each of the first four anniversaries of the date of the award if the

Company meets certain financial performance goals The intrinsic value of RSUs that vested during

fiscal 2010 was $921

At the end of fiscal 2010 fiscal 2009 and fiscal 2008 RSUs outstanding under these equity-based

compensation plans were held by 38 31 and 28 employees respectively and had vesting dates

ranging from 2011 to 2016 These RSU vesting dates were subject to partial acceleration on an

annual basis if certain Company financial performance objectives were met for fiscal year

The following is summary of the status of the Companys RSUs as of July 2010 June 27 2009

and June 28 2008 and activity during the fiscal year then ended

2010 2009 2008

Weighted Weighted Weighted

average average average

grant- grant- grant-

date fair date fair date fair

RSUs value RSUs value RSUs value

Unvested RSUs at

beginning of the

year 319500 6.86 190900 7.94 85900 7.82

Granted 145400 8.08 230600 6.27 151700 8.65

Vested 119000 6.56 81300 7.99 41200 9.36

Forfeited/Cancelled 31800 7.25 20700 7.69 5500 7.03

Unvested RSUs at

the end of the

year 314000 7.49 319500 6.86 190900 7.94
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12 Net Earnings per Common Share

The following table identifies the numerators and denominators used in the computation of basic

and dilutive net earnings per common share for fiscal 2010 fiscal 2009 and fiscal 2008

2010 2009 2008

Numerator

Net earnings 9400 6992 9785

Denominator

Weighted-average common shares

outstanding 10893 10633 10469

Effect of potentially dilutive securities

employee stock options and RSUs 143 104 222

Weighted-average common shares

outstanding assuming dilution 11036 10737 10691

Basic net earnings per common share 0.86 0.66 0.93

Diluted net earnings per common share 0.85 0.65 0.92

The Company excludes stock options to purchase common shares from the calculation of diluted

earnings per common share when they are anti-dilutive measured using the average market price of

the underlying common shares during that fiscal year Stock options excluded from the

computation of diluted net earnings per common share for fiscal 2010 fiscal 2009 and fiscal 2008

were 105000 and respectively

13 Preferred Share Purchase Rights

On May 2009 the Board of Directors of R.G Barry Corporation declared dividend distribution

of one Preferred Share Purchase Right Right for each outstanding common share to

shareholders of record on May 15 2009 Under certain conditions each Right may be exercised to

purchase from R.G Barry Corporation unit consisting of one one-hundredth of share Unit
of Series II Junior Participating Class Preferred Shares par value $1 per share at an initial

exercise price of $25 per Unit subject to adjustment The Rights initially will be attached to R.G

Barry Corporations common shares The Rights will separate from the common shares and

Distribution Date will occur upon the earlier of 10 business days after public announcement

that person or group of affiliated or associated persons has acquired or obtained the right to

acquire beneficial ownership of 15% or more of R.G Barry Corporations outstanding common

shares Share Acquisition Date other than as result of repurchases of common shares by R.G

Barry Corporation or certain inadvertent actions by institutional or certain other shareholders or

10 business days or such later date as the Board of Directors of R.G Barry Corporation shall

determine after the commencement of tender offer or exchange offer that would result in

person or group beneficially owning 15% or more of R.G Bany Corporations outstanding

common shares The Rights are not exercisable until the Distribution Date
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In the event that any person becomes the beneficial owner of 15% or more of the then outstanding

common shares of R.G Barry Corporation each holder of Right will thereafter be entitled to

receive upon exercise common shares of R.G Barry Corporation or in certain circumstances

cash property or other securities of R.G Barry Corporation having market value equal to two

times the exercise price of the Right In the event that at any time following the Share Acquisition

Date R.G Barry Corporation is acquired in merger or other business combination transaction in

which R.G Barry Corporation is not the surviving corporation or 50% or more of the Companys
consolidated assets cash flow or earning power is sold or transferred the holder of Right will be

entitled to receive upon exercise of the Right the number of shares of common stock of the

acquiring company which at the time of such transaction will have market value equal to two

times the exercise price of the Right

The Rights which do not have any voting or dividend rights expire on May 2014 and may be

redeemed by R.G Barry Corporation at price of $0.01 per Right at any time until 10 business

days following the Share Acquisition Date

Each Class Preferred Share entitles the holder thereof to one-tenth of one vote while Class

Preferred Shares should they become authorized for issuance by action of R.G Barry

Corporations Board of Directors entitle the holders thereof to ten votes The preferred shares are

entitled to preference in liquidation None of the preferred shares have been issued

14 Gain from insurance recovery

In April 2008 the Companys leased distribution facility in Texas was struck by tornado

damaging the facility equipment and inventory Damages to the facility equipment and inventory

as well as losses incurred due to business interruption were fully covered by insurance above

nominal deductible provision This insurance coverage provided for reimbursement of the

replacement cost on the facility as well as equipment The inventory coverage provided for an

amount equal to the cost plus normal profit expected in the sale for any damaged finished goods

inventory The carrying cost of finished goods inventory damaged in the storm was approximately

$1315 The Company realized gain of $1362 in fiscal 2008 represented by the difference

between the canying amount of the damaged inventory versus the insurance proceeds

15 Related-party Transactions

Under an existing agreement the Company is obligated for up to two years
after the death of the

chairman to purchase if the estate elects to sell up to $4000 of the Companys common shares at

their fair market value For period of 24 months following the chairmans death the Company has

right of first refusal to purchase any common shares owned by the chairman at the time of his

death if his estate elects to sell such common shares and has the right to purchase such common

shares on the same terms and conditions as the estate proposes to sell such common shares to

third party To fund its potential obligation to purchase such common shares the Company
maintains two insurance policies on the life of the chairman The cumulative cash surrender value

of the policies approximates $2591 which is included in other assets in the accompanying

consolidated balance sheets Effective in March 2004 and continuing through most of fiscal 2009

the Company borrowed against the cash surrender value of both of these policies One of these

policy loans for $450 was repaid during the last month of fiscal 2009
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The Company and its co-founder the mother of the chairman entered into an agreement in August

2005 whereby she transferred all of her product designs and patent rights to the Company and

released all unpaid claims that would have accrued under previous agreement Under the August

2005 agreement the Company is obligated to make 24 quarterly payments of $25 through the last

business day in April 2011 Following the death of the chairmans mother in February 2007 and

through March 24 2008 the Company made the quarterly payments with respect to the agreement

to the successor trust of which the chairman is the trustee and beneficiary In March 2008 the

chairman assigned the remaining payment rights under the agreement to fund established with

philanthropic organization As of July 2010 the Company reported the remaining $97 liability

under this agreement as current installments of long-term debt

16 Segment Reporting

FASB ASC 280 the Segment Reporting topic establishes standards for the manner in which public

enterprises report information about operating segments their products and the geographic areas

where they operate

The Company primarily markets accessory footwear products as described in Note The

Companys business is operated as single operating segment Net sales as reported in the

Consolidated Statements of Income relate primarily to markets in North America At July 2010

and June 27 2009 substantially all of the Companys net property plant and equipment of $4125

and $3743 respectively was located in North America

For fiscal 2010 fiscal 2009 and fiscal 2008 one customer accounted for approximately 35% 38%

and 37% respectively of the Companys consolidated net sales second customer accounted for

10% 10% and 11% of the Companys consolidated net sales for fiscal 2010 fiscal 2009 and fiscal

2008 respectively

17 Contingent Liabilities

The Company is from time to time involved in claims and litigation considered normal in the

course of its business While it is not feasible to predict the ultimate outcome in the opinion of

management the resolution of pending legal proceedings is not expected to have material effect

on the Companys financial position results of operations or cash flows
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18 Accounts Receivable Reserves

Balance at Current

Beginning Charges to Other Balance at

Description of Year Expenses Adjustments Deductions End of Year

Allowance for

doubtful accounts

Period ended

7/03/2010 427 71 270 228

6/27/2009 200 464 237 427

6/28/2008 200 200

Returns Allowance

Period ended

7/03/2010 1075 2884 2528 1431
6/27/2009 151 1418 494 1075

6/28/2008 289 3026 44 3120 151

Promotions

Allowance

Period ended

7/03/2010 1223 11170 572 10034 1787

6/27/2009 1534 9879 484 9706 1223
6/28/2008 1701 10166 438 9895 1534

The amounts under the Other Adjustments column in the table above reflects the difference

between estimates made at the end of the prior fiscal year and actual claims processed during the

applicable fiscal year
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Quarterly Financial Data Unaudited

in thousands except per common share data

Fiscal 2010 First Second Third Fourth

Net sales 29449 55574 22212 16552

Gross profit 12291 23962 8963 6143

Net earnings loss 2265 8226 539 1630

Basic net earnings loss per common share 0.21 0.76 0.05 0.15

Diluted net earnings loss per common share 0.21 0.74 0.05 0.15

Weighted-average common shares outstanding

Basic 10803 10857 10914 10986

Diluted 10948 11042 11112 11154

Fiscal 2009 First Second Third Fourth

Net sales 25630 48853 21130 18204

Gross profit 10160 19284 7086 6937

Net earnings loss 1105 6050 123 286

Basic net earnings loss per common share 0.10 0.57 0.01 0.03

Diluted net earnings loss per common share 0.10 0.56 0.01 0.03

Weighted-average common shares outstanding

Basic 10595 10609 10622 10705

Diluted 10749 10712 10738 10804

The above information is summary of unaudited quarterly results of operations of the Company for

fiscal 2010 and fiscal 2009 The sum of the quarterly net earnings loss per common share data in the

table above may not equal the results for the applicable fiscal year due to rounding and where applicable

the impact of dilutive securities on the annual versus the quarterly net earnings loss per common share

calculations
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Item Changes in and Disagreements With Accountants on Accounting and Financial Disclosure

None

Item 9A Controls and Procedures

Evaluation ofDisclosure Controls and Procedures

We maintain disclosure controls and procedures defined in Rules 13a-15e and 15d-15e under

the Securities Exchange Act of 1934 as amended the Exchange Act that are designed to provide

reasonable assurance that information required to be disclosed in the reports that we file or submit under

the Exchange Act is recorded processed summarized and reported within the time periods specified in

the SECs rules and forms and that such information is accumulated and communicated to our

management including our principal executive officer and our principal financial officer as appropriate

to allow timely decisions regarding required disclosure

Management with the participation of our principal executive officer and our principal financial

officer performed an evaluation of the effectiveness of our disclosure controls and procedures as of the

end of the fiscal year covered by this Annual Report on Form 10-K the fiscal year ended July 2010
Based on that evaluation our principal executive officer and our principal financial officer have

concluded that such disclosure controls and procedures were effective at reasonable assurance level as

of the end of the fiscal year covered by this Annual Report on Form 10-K

Changes in Internal Control Over Financial Reporting

There were no changes in our internal control over financial reporting that occurred in the last fiscal

quarter the fiscal quarter ended July 2010 that have materially affected or are reasonably likely to

materially affect our internal control over financial reporting

Annual Report ofManagement on Internal Control Over Financial Reporting

Management is responsible for establishing and maintaining adequate internal control over financial

reporting to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of our financial reporting and the

preparation of financial statements for external purposes in accordance with accounting principles

generally accepted in the United States Internal control over financial reporting includes those policies

and procedures that pertain to the maintenance of records that in reasonable detail accurately and

fairly reflect the transactions and dispositions of the assets of R.G Barry Corporation and our

consolidated subsidiaries ii provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to

permit preparation of financial statements in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in

the United States and that receipts and expenditures of Barry Corporation and our consolidated

subsidiaries are being made only in accordance with authorizations of management and directors of R.G

Barry Corporation and iii provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of
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subsidiaries that could have material effect on the financial statements

Management with the participation of our principal executive officer and our principal financial

officer evaluated the effectiveness of our internal control over financial reporting as of July 2010 the

end of our fiscal year Management based its assessment on criteria established in Internal Control

Integrated Framework issued by the Committee of Sponsoring Organizations of the Treadway

Commission Managements assessment included evaluation of such elements as the design and operating

effectiveness of key financial reporting controls process documentation accounting policies and our

overall control environment This assessment is supported by testing and monitoring performed under the

direction of management
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Because of its inherent limitations internal control over financial reporting may not prevent or detect

misstatements Also projections of any evaluation of effectiveness to future periods are subject to the risk

that controls may become inadequate because of changes in conditions or that the degree of compliance

with the policies or procedures may deteriorate Accordingly even an effective system of internal control

over financial reporting will provide only reasonable assurance with respect to financial statement

preparation

Based on the assessment of our internal control over financial reporting management has concluded

that our internal control over financial reporting was effective at reasonable assurance level as of July

2010 The results of managements assessment were reviewed with the Audit Committee of the Board of

Directors of R.G Barry Corporation

Additionally our independent registered public accounting firm KPMG LLP independently

assessed the effectiveness of our internal control over financial reporting and issued the accompanying

Report of Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm

Report of Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm

The Board of Directors and Shareholders

R.G Barry Corporation

We have audited R.G Barry Corporations internal control over financial reporting as of July

2010 based on criteria established in Internal Control Integrated Framework issued by the Committee

of Sponsoring Organizations of the Treadway Commission COSO R.G Barry Corporations

management is responsible for maintaining effective internal control over financial reporting and for its

assessment of the effectiveness of internal control over financial reporting included in the accompanying

Annual Report of Management on Internal Control Over Financial Reporting Our responsibility is to

express an opinion on the Companys internal control over financial reporting based on our audit

We conducted our audit in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting

Oversight Board United States Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain

reasonable assurance about whether effective internal control over financial reporting was maintained in

all material respects Our audit included obtaining an understanding of internal control over financial

reporting assessing the risk that material weakness exists and testing and evaluating the design and

operating effectiveness of internal control based on the assessed risk Our audit also included performing

such other procedures as we considered necessary in the circumstances We believe that our audit

provides reasonable basis for our opinion

companys internal control over financial reporting is process designed to provide reasonable

assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for

external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles companys internal

control over financial reporting includes those policies and procedures that pertain to the maintenance

of records that in reasonable detail accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and dispositions of the

assets of the company provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to

permit preparation of financial statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles

and that receipts and expenditures of the company are being made only in accordance with authorizations

of management and directors of the company and provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention

or timely detection of unauthorized acquisition use or disposition of the companys assets that could have

material effect on the financial statements

Because of its inherent limitations internal control over financial reporting may not prevent or

detect misstatements Also projections of any evaluation of effectiveness to future periods are subject to

the risk that controls may become inadequate because of changes in conditions or that the degree of

compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate
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In our opinion Barry Corporation maintained in all material respects effective internal

control over financial reporting as of July 2010 based on criteria established in Internal Control

Integrated Framework issued by the Committee of Sponsoring Organizations of the Treadway

Commission

We also have audited in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting

Oversight Board United States the consolidated balance sheets of R.G Barry Corporation and

subsidiaries as of July 2010 and June 27 2009 and the related consolidated statements of income

shareholders equity and comprehensive income and cash flows for each of the years in the three-year

period ended July 2010 and our report dated September 2010 expressed an unqualified opinion on

those consolidated financial statements

Is KPMG LLP

Columbus Ohio

September 2010

Item 9B Other Information

None

PART III

Item 10 Directors Executive Officers and Corporate Governance

Directors Executive Officers and Persons Nominated or Chosen to Become Directors or Executive

Officers

The information required by Item 401 of SEC Regulation S-K concerning the directors of R.G

Barry Corporation and the Board of Directors nominees for election as directors of R.G Barry

Corporation at the 2010 Annual Meeting of Shareholders of R.G Barry Corporation the 2010 Annual

Meeting is incorporated herein by reference from the disclosure to be included under the caption

PROPOSAL No.2 ELECTION OF DIRECTORS Item on the Proxy in the definitive Proxy

Statement relating to the 2010 Annual Meeting the Definitive 2010 Proxy Statement which will be

filed pursuant to SEC Regulation 14A no later than 120 days after July 2010

The information required by Item 401 of SEC Regulation S-K concerning the executive officers

of R.G Barry Corporation is included in the portion of Part of this 2010 Form 10-K entitled

Supplemental Item Executive Officers of the Re2istrant and incorporated herein by reference

Compliance with Section 16a of the Exchange Act

The information required by Item 405 of SEC Regulation S-K is incorporated herein by reference

from the disclosure to be included under the caption SHARE OWNERSHIP Section 16a Beneficial

Ownership Reporting Compliance in the Definitive 2010 Proxy Statement of R.G Barry Corporation

Procedures by which Shareholders may Recommend Nominees to the Board of Directors of R.G

Barry Corporation

Information concerning the procedures by which shareholders of R.G Barry Corporation may
recommend nominees to the Board of Directors of R.G Barry Corporation is incorporated herein by

reference from the disclosure to be included under the captions PROPOSAL No.2 ELECTION OF

DIRECTORS Item on the Proxy Committees of the Board Nominating and Governance
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Committee and PROPOSAL No.2 ELECTION OF DIRECTORS Item on the Proxy Nominating
Procedures in the 2010 Definitive Proxy Statement of R.G Barry Corporation These procedures have

not materially changed from those described in the definitive Proxy Statement of R.G Barry Corporation
for the 2009 Annual Meeting of Shareholders

Audit Committee Matters

The information required by Items 407d4 and 407d5 of SEC Regulation S-K is

incorporated herein by reference from the disclosure to be included under the caption PROPOSAL No.2
ELECTION OF DIRECTORS Item on the Proxy Committees of the Board Audit Committee in

the Definitive 2010 Proxy Statement of R.G Barry Corporation

Code of Business Conduct and Ethics Committee Charters Board Mission Corporate
Governance Guidelines

The Board of Directors of R.G Barry Corporation has adopted Code of Business Conduct

Ethics covering the directors officers and employees of R.G Barry Corporation and its subsidiaries

including the President and Chief Executive Officer the principal executive officer and the Senior Vice

President-Finance and Chief Financial Officer the principal financial officer and principal accounting

officer

R.G Barry Corporation will disclose the following events if they occur in current report on

Form 8-K to be filed with the SEC within the required four business days following their occurrence

the date and nature of any amendment to provision of the Code of Business Conduct Ethics of R.G
Barry Corporation that applies to the principal executive officer principal financial officer principal

accounting officer or controller or persons performing similar functions ii relates to any element of the

code of ethics definition enumerated in Item 406b of SEC Regulation S-K and iii is not technical
administrative or other non-substantive amendment and description of any waiver including the

nature of the waiver the name of the person to whom the waiver was granted and the date of the waiver
including an implicit waiver from provision of the Code of Business Conduct Ethics granted to the

principal executive officer principal financial officer principal accounting officer or controller or

persons performing similar functions that relates to one or more of the items set forth in Item 406b of

SEC Regulation S-K In addition R.G Barry Corporation will disclose any waivers of the Code of

Business Conduct Ethics granted to director or an executive officer of R.G Barry Corporation if they

occur in current report on Form 8-K within four business days following their occurrence

The Board of Directors of R.G Barry Corporation has adopted charters for each of the Audit

Committee the Compensation Committee and the Nominating and Governance Committee as well as the

Board Charter Corporate Governance Guidelines

The text of each of the Code of Business Conduct Ethics the Audit Committee charter the

Compensation Committee charter the Nominating and Governance Committee charter and the Board
Charter Corporate Governance Guidelines is posted on the Investor Room Corporate Governance

page of R.G Barry Corporations web site located at www.rgbarry.com Interested persons may also

obtain copy of the Code of Business Conduct Ethics the Audit Committee charter the Compensation
Committee charter the Nominating and Governance Committee charter and the Board Charter

Corporate Governance Guidelines without charge by writing to R.G Barry Corporation at its principal

executive offices located at 13405 Yarmouth Road N.W Pickerington Ohio 43147 Attention JosØ

Ibarra In addition copy of the Code of Business Conduct Ethics is incorporated by reference into

this 2010 Form 10-K as Exhibit 14.1 from R.G Barry Corporations Annual Report on Form 10-K for

the fiscal year ended June 27 2009 Exhibit 14.1
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Item 11 Executive Compensation

The information required by Item 402 of SEC Regulation S-K is incorporated herein by reference

from the disclosure to be included under the captions PROPOSAL No.2 ELECTION OF DIRECTORS

Item on the ProxyBoard Role in Risk OversightRisk Assessment in Compensation Programs

COMPENSATION OF DIRECTORS COMPENSATION DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS and

COMPENSATION OF EXECUTIVE OFFICERS in the Definitive 2010 Proxy Statement of R.G

Barry Corporation

The information required by Item 407e of SEC Regulation S-K is incorporated herein by

reference from the disclosure to be included under the caption PROPOSAL No.2 ELECTION OF

DIRECTORS Item on the Proxy Compensation Committee Interlocks and Insider Participation in

the Definitive 2010 Proxy Statement of R.G Barry Corporation

The information required by Item 407e of SEC Regulation S-K is incorporated herein by

reference from the disclosure to be included under the caption
COMPENSATION COMMITTEE

REPORT in the Definitive 2010 Proxy Statement of R.G Barry Corporation

Item 12 Security Ownership of Certain Beneficial Owners and Mana2ement and Related

Stockholder Matters

Ownership of Common Shares of R.G Barry Corporation

The information required by Item 403 of SEC Regulation S-K is incorporated herein by reference

from the disclosure to be included in the Definitive 2010 Proxy Statement of R.G Barry Corporation

under the caption SHARE OWNERSHIP

Equity Compensation Plan Information

The information required by Item 201d of SEC Regulation S-K is incorporated herein by

reference from the disclosure to be included in the Definitive 2010 Proxy Statement of R.G Barry

Corporation under the caption EQUITY COMPENSATION PLAN INFORMATION

Item 13 Certain Relationships and Related Transactions and Director Independence

Certain Relationships and Related Person Transactions

The information required by Item 404 of SEC Regulation S-K is incorporated herein by reference

from the disclosure to be included under the caption TRANSACTIONS WITH RELATED PERSONS

in the Definitive 2010 Proxy Statement of R.G Barry Corporation

Director Independence

The information required by Item 407a of SEC Regulation S-K is incorporated herein by

reference from the disclosure to be included under the caption PROPOSAL No.2 ELECTION OF

DIRECTORS Item on the Proxy in the Definitive 2010 Proxy Statement of R.G Bany Corporation

Item 14 Principal Accountant Fees and Services

The information required by this Item 14 is incorporated herein by reference from the disclosure

to be included in the Definitive 2010 Proxy Statement of R.G Barry Corporation under the captions

AUDIT COMMITTEE MATTERS Pre-Approval Policies and Procedures and AUDIT

COMMITTEE MATTERS Fees of Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm
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PART IV

Item 15 Exhibits and Financial Statement Schedules

a1 The consolidated financial statements and report thereon listed below are included in

Item Financial Statements and Supplementary Data of this 2010 Form 10-K at the pages
indicated

Page

Report of KPMG LLP Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm 32

Consolidated Balance Sheets at July 2010 and June 27 2009 33

Consolidated Statements of Income for the fiscal
years ended July 2010

June 27 2009 and June 28 2008 34

Consolidated Statements of Shareholders Equity and Comprehensive

Income for the fiscal years ended July 2010 June 27 2009 and June

28 2008 35

Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows for the fiscal years ended July

2010 June 27 2009 and June 28 2008 36

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements 37-59

a2 Financial statement schedules

All schedules for which provision is made in the applicable accounting regulations of the SEC are

omitted because of the absence of the conditions under which they are required or because the required

information is presented in the Consolidated Financial Statements or notes thereto included in Item

Financial Statements and Supplement Data of this 2010 Form 10-K

a3 and Exhibits

The exhibits listed on the Index to Exhibits beginning on page E-1 of this 2010 Form 10-K are

filed with this 2010 Form 10-K or incorporated herein by reference as noted in the Index to Exhibits

The Index to Exhibits specifically identifies each management contract or compensatory plan or

arrangement required to be filed as an exhibit to this 2010 Form 10-K or incorporated herein by reference

Financial Statement Schedule

None
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SIGNATURES

Pursuant to the requirements of Section 13 or 15d of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934 the

Registrant has duly caused this report to be signed on its behalf by the undersigned thereunto duly

authorized

R.G BARRY CORPORATION

Date September 2010 By /sI JosØ Ibarra

JosØ Ibarra

Senior Vice President-Finance and Chief Financial

Officer

Pursuant to the requirements of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934 this report has been signed

below by the following persons on behalf of the Registrant and in the capacities and on the date indicated

Name Capacity Date

Is Greg Tunney President and Chief Executive Officer September 2010

Greg Tunney Principal Executive Officer and

Director

/s/ JosØ Ibarra Senior Vice President Finance and September 2010

JosØ Ibarra Chief Financial Officer Principal

Financial Officer and Principal

Accounting Officer

Is Gordon Zacks Non-Executive Chairman of the Board September 2010

Gordon Zacks and Director

/sI Nicholas DiPaolo Director September 2010

Nicholas DiPaolo

/s/ David Lauer Director September 2010

David Lauer

Is David Nichols Director September 2010

David Nichols

/s Janice Page Director September 2010

Janice Page

/s/ Edward Stan Director September 2010

Edward Stan

Is Thomas Von Lehman Director September 2010

Thomas Von Lehman

/s/ Harvey Weinberg Director September 2010

Harvey Weinberg
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The undersigned by signing his name hereto does hereby sign this Annual Report on Form 10-K on

behalf of each of the above-identified directors of the Registrant pursuant to Powers of Attorney

executed by the above-identified directors of the Registrant which Powers of Attorney are filed with

this Annual Report on Form 10-K as Exhibit 24.1

By Is JosØ Ibarra
Date September 2010

JosØ Ibarra

Attorney-in-Fact
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R.G BARRY CORPORATION
ANNUAL REPORT ON FORM 10-K

FOR FISCAL YEAR ENDED JULY 2010

INDEX TO EXHIBITS

Exhibit No Description Location

3.1 Articles of Incorporation of R.G Barry

Corporation Registrant as filed with

Ohio Secretary of State on March 26

1984

3.2 Certificate of Amendment to Articles of

Incorporation of Registrant as filed with

Ohio Secretary of State on June 1987

Certificate of Amendment to the Articles

of Incorporation of Registrant

Authorizing the Series Junior

Participating Class Preferred Shares

as filed with the Ohio Secretary of State

on March 11988

3.4 Certificate of Amendment to the Articles

of Registrant as filed with the Ohio

Secretary of State on May 1988

3.5 Certificate of Amendment to the Articles

of Incorporation of Registrant as filed

with the Ohio Secretary of State on

May 22 1995

3.6 Certificate of Amendment to the Articles

of Incorporation of Registrant as filed

with the Ohio Secretary of State on

September 1995

Certificate of Amendment by

Shareholders to the Articles of

Incorporation of Registrant as filed with

the Ohio Secretary of State on

May 30 1997

Incorporated herein by reference to

Exhibit 3ai to Registrants Annual

Report on Form 10-K for the fiscal

year ended December 31 1988 SEC
File No 0-12667 Registrants 1988

Form 10-K

Incorporated herein by reference to

Exhibit 3ai to Registrants 1988

Form 10-K

Incorporated herein by reference to

Exhibit 3ai to Registrants 1988

Form 10-K

Incorporated herein by reference to

Exhibit 3ai to Registrants 1988

Form 10-K

Incorporated herein by reference to

Exhibit 3b to Registrants Annual

Report on Form 10-K for the fiscal

year ended December 30 1995 SEC
File No 00 1-08769 Registrants

1995 Form 10-K

Incorporated herein by reference to

Exhibit 3c to Registrants 1995

Form 10-K

Incorporated herein by reference to

Exhibit 4h6 to Registrants

Registration Statement on Form S-8

filed June 1997 Registration No
333-2867

3.3

3.7

E-l



Exhibit No Description Location

Certificate of Amendment by Directors

of Registrant to the Articles of

Incorporation of Registrant Authorizing

Series Junior Participating Class

Preferred Shares as filed with the Ohio

Secretary of State on March 10 1998

Certificate of Amendment by Directors

to the Articles of Incorporation of

Registrant Authorizing the Series II

Junior Participating Class Preferred

Shares as filed with the Ohio Secretary

of State on May 2009

Articles of Incorporation of Registrant

reflecting all amendments filed with the

Ohio Secretary of State purposes of

SEC reporting compliance only not

filed with the Ohio Secretary of State

3.11 Code of Regulations of Registrant

reflecting all amendment

Rights Agreement dated as of May

2009 between Registrant and The Bank

of New York Mellon as Rights Agent

including the Form of Rights Certificate

and the Summary of Rights to Purchase

Preferred Shares

10.1 R.G Barry Corporation Associates

Retirement Plan amended and restated

effective January 1997

Amendment No to the R.G Barry

Corporation Associates Retirement Plan

amended and restated effective

January 1997 and executed on

December 31 2001

Incorporated herein by reference to

Exhibit 3a7 to Registrants Annual

Report on Form 10-K for the fiscal

year ended January 1998 SEC File

No 001-08769 Registrants 1997

Form 10-K

Incorporated herein by reference to

Exhibit 3.1 to Registrants Current

Report on Form 8-K dated and filed

May 2009 SEC File No 001-

08769 Registrants May 2009

Form 8-K

Incorporated herein by reference to

Exhibit 3.10 to Registrant Report on

Form 10-K for the fiscal year ended

June 27 2009 SEC File No 001-

08769 Registrants June 2009 Form

10-K

Incorporated herein by reference to

Exhibit 3.2 to Registrants Quarterly

Report on Form 10-Q for the quarterly

period ended July 2004 SEC File

No 001-08769 Registrants July

2004 Form lO-Q

Incorporated herein by reference to

Exhibit 4.1 to Registrants May
2009 Form 8-K

Incorporated herein by reference to

Exhibit 10.1 to Registrants Annual

Report on Form 10-K for the fiscal

year ended December 29 2001 SEC
File No 00 1-08769 Registrants

2001 Form 10-K

Incorporated herein by reference to

Exhibit 10.2 to Registrants Annual

Report on Form 10-K for the fiscal

year ended December 28 2002 SEC
File No 00 1-08769 Registrants

2002 Form 10-K

3.8

3.9

3.10

4.1

10.2
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Exhibit No Description Location

Amendment No to the R.G Bany

Corporation Associates Retirement Plan

amended and restated effective

January 1997 and executed on

December 31 2001 for the Economic

Growth and Tax Relief Reconciliation

Act of 2001

10.4 Amendment No.3 to the R.G Barry

Corporation Associates Retirement Plan

effective as of March 31 2004 and

executed on February 20 2004

10.6 R.G Barry Corporation Supplemental

Retirement Plan effective as of

January 1997

Amendment No to the R.G Bany

Corporation Supplemental Retirement

Plan Effective January 1997 effective

as of May 12 1998 executed May 15

1998

Amendment No to the R.G Barry

Corporation Supplemental Retirement

Plan Effective January 1997 effective

as of January 2000 executed March

28 2000

Amendment No to the R.G Barry

Corporation Supplemental Retirement

Plan Effective January 1997 effective

as of March 31 2004 executed February

20 2004

Incorporated herein by reference to

Exhibit 10.3 to Registrants 2002

Form 10-K

Incorporated herein by reference to

Exhibit 10.4 to Registrants Annual

Report on Form 10-K for the fiscal

year ended January 2004 SEC File

No 001-08769 Registrants

January 2004 Form 10-K

Incorporated herein by reference to

Exhibit 10.5 to Registrants Annual

Report on Form 10-K for the fiscal

year ended December 31 2005 SEC
File No 00 1-08769 Registrants

December 2005 Form 10-K

Incorporated herein by reference to

Exhibit 10.2 to Registrants Annual

Report on Form 10-K for the fiscal

year ended January 2000 SEC File

No 001-08769 Registrants

January 2000 Form 10-K

Incorporated herein by reference to

Exhibit 10.3 to Registrants January

2000 Form 10-K

Incorporated herein by reference to

Exhibit 10.4 to Registrants January

2000 Form 10-K

Incorporated herein by reference to

Exhibit 0.8 to Registrants January

2004 Form 10-K

10.3

10.5 Amendment No to the R.G Barry

Corporation Associates Retirement Plan

executed on September 16 2005

107

10.8

10.9
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Exhibit No Description Location

R.G Barry Corporation Amended and

Restated 2005 Supplemental Retirement

Plan amended and restated on

December 18 2008 effective as of

November 20 2008

10.11 R.G Barry Corporation Supplemental

Benefit Plans Trust effective as of

September 1995

10.12 R.G Barry Corporation Restoration Plan

As Amended and Restated Effective as

of January 1997

10.13 Amendment No.2 to the R.G Barry

Corporation Restoration Plan executed

February 20 2001 effective as of

January 2001

10.14 Amendment No.3 to the R.G Barry

Corporation Restoration Plan executed

February 20 2004 effective as of March

31 2004

10.15 R.G Barry Corporation 2008

Restoration Plan adopted December 18

2008 effective as of December 31

2008

10.16 Employment Agreement effective July

2001 between Registrant and Gordon

Zacks

10.17 Confidential Separation Agreement
dated March 10 2004 between

Registrant and Gordon Zacks

10.18 Agreement dated September 27 1989

between Registrant and Gordon Zacks

Incorporated herein by reference to

Exhibit 10.1 to Registrants Current

Report on Form 8-K dated December

23 2008 and filed December 24 2008

SEC File No 00 1-08769

Registrants December 24 2008

Form 8-K

Incorporated herein by reference to

Exhibit 10.1 to Registrants July

2004 Form 10-Q

Incorporated herein by reference to

Exhibit 10.12 to Registrants Annual

Report on Form 10-K for the fiscal

year ended June 28 2008 SEC File

No 001-08769 Registrants June

2008 Form 10-K

Incorporated herein by reference to

Exhibit 10.13 to Registrants June

2008 Form 10-K

Incorporated herein by reference to

Exhibit 10.14 to Registrants June

2008 Form 10-K

Incorporated herein by reference to

Exhibit 10.2 to Registrants

December 24 2008 Form 8-K

Incorporated herein by reference to

Exhibit 10.5 to Registrants 2001

Form 10-K

Incorporated herein by reference to

Exhibit 10.1 to Registrants Current

Report on Form 8-K dated and filed

March 11 2004 SEC File No 001-

08769 Registrants March 11 2004

Form 8-K

Incorporated herein by reference to

Exhibit 28.1 to Registrants Current

Report on Form 8-K dated October

11 1989 and filed October 12 1989

SEC File No 0-12667

10.10
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Exhibit No Description Location

10.19

10.20

10.21

10.22

10.23

10.24

1025

10.26

10.27

10.28

Amendment No dated as of October

12 1994 to the Agreement between

Registrant and Gordon Zacks dated

September 27 1989

Amended Split-Dollar Insurance

Agreement dated March 23 1995

between Registrant and Gordon Zacks

R.G Barry Corporation Employee Stock

Purchase Plan

R.G Barry Corporation Deferred

Compensation Plan effective as of

September 1995

Amendment No to the R.G Barry

Corporation Deferred Compensation

Plan executed March 1997 effective

as of March 1997

Amendment No to the R.G Barry

Corporation Deferred Compensation

Plan executed March 28 2000

effective as of December 1999

Amendment No to the R.G Barry

Corporation Deferred Compensation

Plan executed October 31 2001

effective as of December 1999

Amendment No to the R.G Barry

Corporation Deferred Compensation

Plan executed February 20 2004

effective as of February 21 2004

R.G Barry Corporation 1997 Incentive

Stock Plan as amended

Form of Stock Option Agreement used

in connection with the grant of incentive

stock options pursuant to the R.G Barry

Corporation 1997 Incentive Stock Plan

Incorporated herein by reference to

Exhibit to Amendment No 14 to

Schedule 13D dated January 27

1995 filed by Gordon Zacks on

February 13 1995

Incorporated herein by reference to

Exhibit 10h to Registrants 1995

Form 10-K

Incorporated herein by reference to

Exhibit 10.1 to Registrants Quarterly

Report on Form 10-Q for the quarterly

period ended June 28 2003 SEC File

No 00 1-08769

Incorporated herein by reference to

Exhibit 10v to Registrants 1995

Form 10-K

Incorporated herein by reference to

Exhibit 10.23 to Registrants January

2000 Form 10-K

Incorporated herein by reference to

Exhibit 10.21 to Registrants 2001

Form 10-K

Incorporated herein by reference to

Exhibit 10.24 to Registrants 2002

Form 10-K

Incorporated herein by reference to

Exhibit 10.29 to Registrants January

2004 Form 10-K

Incorporated herein by reference to

Exhibit 10 to Registrants Registration

iaiefliefli oil rolul -o iiiu june 10

1999 Registration No 333-81105

Incorporated herein by reference to

Exhibit 10.24 to Registrants Annual

Report on Form 10-K for the fiscal

year ended December 30 2000 SEC
File No 00 1-08769 Registrants

December 2000 Form 10-K
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Exhibit No Description Location

10.29 Form of Stock Option Agreement used Incorporated herein by reference to

in connection with the grant of non- Exhibit 10.25 to Registrants

qualified stock options pursuant to the December 2000 Form 10-K

R.G Barry Corporation 1997 Incentive

Stock Plan

10.30 R.G Barry Corporation 2002 Stock Incorporated herein by reference to

Incentive Plan Exhibit 10 to Registrants Registration

Statement on Form S-8 filed June 14

2002 Registration No 333-90544

10.31 Form of Stock Option Agreement used Incorporated herein by reference to

in connection with grant of incentive Exhibit 10.30 of Registrants 2002

stock options pursuant to the R.G Barry Form 10-K

Corporation 2002 Stock Incentive Plan

10.32 Form of Stock Option Agreement used Incorporated herein by reference to

in connection with grant of non-qualified Exhibit 10.31 of Registrants 2002

stock options pursuant to the Barry Form 10-K

Corporation 2002 Stock Incentive Plan

10.33 Agreement made to be effective August Incorporated herein by reference to

11 2005 between Registrant and Exhibit 10.2 to Registrants Quarterly

Florence Zacks Melton Report on Form 10-Q for the quarterly

period ended July 2005 SEC File

No 00 1-08769 Registrants July

2005 Form 10-Q

10.34 Fiscal 2008 R.G Barry Management Incorporated herein by reference to

Bonus Plan Exhibit 10.1 to Registrants Current

Report on Form 8-K dated and filed

August 28 2007 SEC File No 001-

08769

10.35 Fiscal 2009 R.G Barry Management Incorporated herein by reference to

Bonus Plan Exhibit 10.1 to Registrants Quarterly

Report on Form 10-Q for the quarterly

period ended September 27 2008

SEC File No 00 1-08769

10.36 Fiscal 2010 R.G Barry Management Incorporated herein by reference to

Bonus Plan Exhibit 10.1 to Registrants Quarterly

Report on Form 10-Q for the quarterly

period ended January 2010 SEC
File No 00 1-08769 Registrants

January 2010 Form 10-Q

10.37 Fiscal 2011 R.G Barry Management Filed herewith

Bonus Plan
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Exhibit No Description Location

Form of Change in Control Agreement

entered into effective as of January

2008 by Registrant with each of the

following officers Glenn Evans

Senior Vice President Global

Operations JosØ Ibarra Senior Vice

President Finance and Chief Financial

Officer Lee Smith Senior Vice

President Creative Services Yvonne

Kalucis Senior Vice President

Human Resources and Thomas JZ

Konecki President of Private Brands

10.39 Change in Control Agreement entered

into effective as of April 13 2009 by

Registrant with Greg Ackard Senior

Vice President-Sales

10.40 R.G Barry Corporation Amended and

Restated 2005 Long-Term Incentive

Plan as amended on October 29 2009

Form of Nonqualified Stock Option

Award Agreement Nonqualified Stock

Option Exercise Notice and Beneficiary

Designation Form used to evidence

grants of nonqualified stock options

made to directors of Registrant under the

R.G Barry Corporation 2005 Long-

Term Incentive Plan now known as the

R.G Barry Corporation Amended and

Restated 2005 Long-Term Incentive

Plan

Form of Restricted Stock Unit Award

Agreement used to evidence grants of

restricted stock units made to directors

of Registrant under the R.G Bany

Corporation 2005 Long-Term Incentive

Plan now known as the R.G Barry

Corporation Amended and Restated

2005 Long-Term Incentive Plan

Incorporated herein by reference to

Exhibit 10.45 to Registrants June

2008 Form 10-K

Incorporated herein by reference to

Exhibit 10.41 to Registrants June

2009 Form 10-K

Incorporated herein by reference to

Exhibit 10.2 to Registrants January

2010 Form 10-Q

Incorporated herein by reference to

Exhibit 10.1 to Registrants July

2005 Form 10-Q

Incorporated herein by reference to

Exhibit 10.1 to Registrants Current

Report on Form 8-K dated May 22

2006 and filed May 23 2006 SEC
File No 001-08769 Registrants

May 23 2006 Form 8-K

10.38

10.41

10.42
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Exhibit No Description Location

Form of Restricted Stock Unit Award

Agreement used to evidence grants of

restricted stock units made to employees

of Registrant under the R.G Barry

Corporation 2005 Long-Term Incentive

Plan now known as the R.G Barry

Corporation Amended and Restated

2005 Long-Term Incentive Plan

Form of Amendment Notice and

Consent Form Regarding Restricted

Stock Units Awarded to Employees on

May 17 2006 under the R.G Barry

Corporation 2005 Long-Term Incentive

Plan now known as the R.G Barry

Corporation Amended and Restated

2005 Long-Term Incentive Plan

Form of Performance-Based Restricted

Stock Unit Award Agreement for

Employees used to evidence grants of

restricted stock units made on September

11 2008 under the R.G Barry

Corporation 2005 Long-Term Incentive

Plan now known as the R.G Barry

Corporation Amended and Restated

2005 Long-Term Incentive Plan

10.46 Executive Employment Agreement

between Registrant and Greg Tunney

entered into on May 2009 and

effective as of May 2009

Nonqualified Stock Option Award

Agreement for nonqualified stock

options granted to Greg Tunney on

February 2006 under the R.G Barry

Corporation 2005 Long-Term Incentive

Plan now known as the R.G Barry

Corporation Amended and Restated

2005 Long-Term Incentive Plan

10.48 R.G Barry Corporation Amended and

Restated Deferral Plan effective as of

October 28 2008

Incorporated herein by reference to

Exhibit 10.2 to Registrants May 23

2006 Form 8-K

Incorporated herein by reference to

Exhibit 10.1 to Registrants Current

Report on Form 8-K dated August

18 2006 and filed August 21 2006

SEC File No 00 1-08769

Incorporated herein by reference to

Exhibit 10.6 to Registrants Quarterly

Report on Form 10-Q for the quarterly

period ended December 27 2008

SEC File No 00 1-08769

Registrants December 27 2008

Form 2008 Form 10-Q

Incorporated herein by reference to

Exhibit 10.1 to Registrants Current

Report on Form 8-K dated and filed

May 112009 SEC File No 001-

08769

Incorporated herein by reference to

Exhibit 10.2 to Registrants Current

Report on Form 8-K dated

February 2006 and filed

February 10 2006 SEC File No
001-08769

Incorporated herein by reference to

Exhibit 10.5 to Registrants December

27 2008 Form 10-Q

10.43

10.44

10.45

10.47
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Exhibit No Description Location

R.G Barry Corporation Deferral Plan

now known as R.G Barry Corporation

Amended and Restated Deferral Plan-
Directors Notice of Eligibility and

Enrollment Form

R.G Barry Corporation Deferral Plan

now known as R.G Barry Corporation

Amended and Restated Deferral Plan-
Gordon Zacks Notice of Eligibility and

Enrollment Form

R.G Barry Corporation Deferral Plan

now known as R.G Barry Corporation

Amended and Restated Deferral Plan-

Employees Notice of Eligibility and

Enrollment Form

Employees Notice of Eligibility related

to Deferral of Restricted Stock Units for

Calendar Year 2009 under the R.G

Barry Corporation Amended and

Restated Deferral Plan

10.53 R.G Barry Corporation Amended and

Restated Deferral Plan Participation

Agreement Relating to Restricted Stock

Units Granted in Calendar Year 2009

10.54 Revolving Credit Agreement entered

into effective March 29 2007 between

Registrant and The Huntington National

Bank

10.55 Revolving Credit Note dated March 29

2007 given by Registrant to The

Huntington National Bank

10.56 First Modification of Revolving Credit

Agreement entered into effective April

iZ AV7uii uLvvc1I r..C1L1aI1L aiiu

Huntington National Bank

10.57 Second Modification of Revolving

Credit Agreement entered into effective

as of June 26 2009 between Registrant

and The Huntington National Bank

Incorporated herein by reference to

Exhibit 10.4 to Registrants May 23

2006 Form 8-K

Incorporated herein by reference to

Exhibit 10.5 to Registrants May 23

2006 Form 8-K

Incorporated herein by reference to

Exhibit 10.6 to Registrants May 23

2006 Form 8-K

Incorporated herein by reference to

Exhibit 10.55 to Registrants June

2009 FormlO-K

Incorporated herein by reference to

Exhibit 10.56 to Registrants June

2009 FormlO-K

Incorporated herein by reference to

Exhibit 10.1 to Registrants Current

Report on Form 8-K dated April

2007 and filed April 2007 SEC
File No 001-08769 Registrants

April 2007 Form 8-K

Incorporated herein by reference to

Exhibit 10.2 to Registrants April

2007 Form 8-K

Incorporated herein by reference to

Exhibit 10.1 to Registrants Current

QTT -l A1 11
J.AdJJJI JI1 ..J1II1 IrI% IA./tI

11J111
-I

2007 and filed April 18 2007 SEC
File No 00 1-08769

Incorporated herein by reference to

Exhibit 10.1 to Registrants Current

Report on Form 8-K dated and filed

July 22 2009 SEC File No 001-

08769

10.49

10.50

10.5

10.52
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Exhibit No Description Location

14.1 R.G Barry Corporation Code of Incorporated herein by reference to

Business Conduct Ethics Exhibit 14.1 to Registrants June 2009

Form 10-K

21.1 Subsidiaries of Registrant Filed herewith

23.1 Consent of KPMG LLP Independent Filed herewith

Registered Public Accounting Firm

24.1 Powers of Attorney Executed by Filed herewith

Directors and Certain Executive Officers

of Registrant

31.1 Rule 3a 14a/i 5d- 14a Certifications Filed herewith

Principal Executive Officer

31.2 Rule 13a 14a/15d-14a Certifications Filed herewith

Principal Financial Officer

32.1 Section 1350 Certifications Principal Furnished herewith

Executive Officer and Principal

Financial Officer

Management contract or compensatory plan or arrangeme
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